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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS

28th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTRAR (IN BERMUDA)

Conyers Corporate Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

REGISTRAR (IN HONG KONG)
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

WEBSITE
http://www.emp296.com

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 296

KEY DATES
Annual Results Announcement
Book Close Dates for Final Dividend

20 June 2018
16 and 17 August 2018

Record Date for Final Dividend
2018 Annual General Meeting
Payment of Final Dividend

17 August 2018

9 August 2018

7 September 2018
(HK$0.057 per share)

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company. In order to
protect the environment, the Company highly recommends the
shareholders to receive electronic copy of this Annual Report.
Shareholders may have the right to change their choice of
receipt of our future Corporation Communications at any time by
reasonable notice in writing to the Company or the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited,
by post or by email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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> FINANCIAL SUMMARY <
MBEBE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH BE3H31H ILEE

Revenue

1,613,1 - 719
WA 1,498,351 ,613,180 A
St 958,923 1,053,894 - 9.0%
EEEFIJ ’ ’ ) .

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

RRREE AREEZF R

Basic earnings per share HK$0.30 HK$0.27
BRERREN BT BT

Total dividends per share HK$0.083 HK$0.082
BRAR S EE BT BT

393,574 346,490 + 13.6%

+ 11.1%

+ 1.2%

-EmperorEntertalnment Hotel leltedﬁaaﬁ% ﬁfh ﬁl‘ﬁ’z\\j -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS <
BB WD T

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) principally
engage in provision of entertainment and hospitality services in
Macau.

MARKET REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year”), Macau’s
gross gaming revenue recorded a growth of 20.9% to
MOP231.4 billion. Such increase was largely driven by an
expansion in overall gaming capacity on Cotai. Since 2015,
several large-scale development projects embarked by gaming
concessionaires have commenced operations on Cotai. With a
raft of new gaming offerings and family-friendly recreations, the
new establishments have attracted leisure travellers, who are
typically mass-market players. The market share of gaming on
Macau Peninsula, especially in the mass segment, was diluted
by the competition from new properties on Cotai.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
OVERALL REVIEW

With incremental capacity added on Cotai, though the Group’s
performance was inevitably affected, it managed to record
a slight decline in revenue, to HK$1,498.4 million (2017:
HK$1,613.2 million). Profit for the Year attributable to the owners
of the Company increased by 13.6% to HK$393.6 million (2017:
HK$346.5 million). Such increase was mainly due to a decrease
of selling and marketing expenses and exchange loss, as well
as a revaluation gain recognised during the Year, as compared
to a revaluation loss in the last year. Basic earnings per share
increased to HK$0.30 (2017: HK$0.27). The board of directors
(the “Board” or the “Directors”) of the Company recommended
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.057 (2017: HK$0.057)
per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.026 (2017:
HK$0.025) per share, the total dividends per share for the Year
are HK$0.083 (2017: HK$0.082).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD T

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group continued to maintain a strong cash position and a
healthy financial position, supported by its ongoing and stable
cash inflows. The Group funded its operations and capital
expenditure by cash generated internally from its operations.
For the commercial benefit of the Group, the Group invested in
certain high-yield listed corporate bonds with carrying value of
HK$423.1 million as of 31 March 2018. These listed corporate
bonds are denominated in United States dollar and Renminbi
with a maturity period from 1 to 3 years. As at 31 March
2018, aggregate of bank balances and cash, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits of the Group amounted to
HK$3,574.4 million (2017: HK$3,962.2 million), which are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Patacas. The
Group did not experience any significant exposure to foreign
exchange rate fluctuation during the Year.

The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31 March
2018 were HK$4,073.8 million and HK$881.7 million (2017:
HK$4,279.1 million and HK$817.6 million), respectively. During
the Year, the Group fully repaid its bank borrowing of HK$469.8
million and partially settled advances from non-controlling
interests of HK$13.2 million. As a result, the gearing ratio of
the Group (expressed as a percentage of total borrowings over
total equity) significantly decreased to 1.8% (2017: 10.8%) as
of 31 March 2018. As at 31 March 2018, the advances from
non-controlling interests amounted to HK$107.6 million (2017:
HK$120.8 million), which was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, unsecured, interest-free and repayable at the discretion
of non-controlling interests and availability of surplus fund of the
subsidiary.

Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Company had
repurchased its own shares from the market in total of 1,935,000
shares at an aggregated consideration of HK$3.3 million with an
average price of HK$1.729 per share from internal resources.
Having considered the Group’s cash reserves, the Directors
believe the share repurchases would recognise value to the
Company’s shareholders and benefit the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. As at the date of this annual report,
these repurchased shares had been cancelled.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2018, assets with carrying values of
approximately HK$2.3 billion (2017: HK$2.3 billion) were
pledged to several banks as security for banking facilities, for a
total of approximately HK$100.0 million (2017: HK$569.8 million)
granted to the Group. In addition, the Group has a bank deposit
of HK$0.3 million (2017: HK$0.3 million) pledged to a bank as
security for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third
party to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEEEREE

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group currently operates two hotels, Grand Emperor Hotel
(“GEH”) and Inn Hotel Macau (“IHM"), in Macau.

GEH, the Group’s flagship project, on the Macau Peninsula,
is an award-winning 26-storey gaming hotel with a gross floor
area of approximately 655,000 square feet and 307 guest
rooms. It has six gaming floors, covering over 130,000 square
feet, and offers slot machines as well as gaming tables in the
gaming concourse and the VIP room. In addition, GEH offers
a wide range of amenities including fitness centre, sauna and
spa facilities, as well as five restaurants and bars boasting fine
cuisines from all around the world. With strong commitment to
providing guests with unparalleled entertainment and hospitality
experiences, the Group delivers consistently top-quality services
that translate into high levels of customer satisfaction and
loyalty.

Located at the heart of Macau's Taipa Island, IHM is a 17-storey
hotel with a gross floor area of approximately 209,000 square
feet, and 287 guest rooms. IHM creates comfortable experience
for catering the lifestyles of both leisure and business travellers.
Through extending coverage from the Peninsula to Taipa, IHM
enables the Group to fully capture the potential of Macau's
hospitality market.

GAMING REVENUE

The Group’s casino in GEH is operated under the gaming
licence held by Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A. The
introduction of other casino resorts in Cotai has resulted in
market share dilution on the Macau Peninsula, where the
Group’s casino complex is located. Facing keen competition
from the new casino resorts, the Group strived to mitigate the
impact by improving customer segmentation. Leveraging its
dedicated customer service team, the Group also strengthened
efforts to create customer-centric experiences that build loyalty
and engagement of high-roller gamblers. During the Year, the
Group’s gaming revenue declined slightly to HK$1,253.4 million
(2017: HK$1,362.1 million).

Gaming Concourse

The gross win in the gaming concourse was HK$1,293.1 million
(2017: HK$1,391.8 million) and revenue from the gaming
concourse was HK$723.2 million (2017: HK$777.5 million),
accounting for 48.3% of the Group’s total revenue. There were
67 (2017: 67) tables in the gaming concourse. Average win per
table per day was HK$53,000 (2017: HK$57,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD T

VIP Room

The Group self-managed a VIP room with 10 (2017: 10) tables.
The rolling amount was HK$22.4 billion (2017: HK$24.7 billion).
Revenue from the VIP room was HK$490.9 million (2017:
HK$546.4 million), accounting for 32.8% of the Group’s total
revenue. Average win per table per day was HK$237,000 (2017:
HK$263,000).

Slot Machines

With a capacity of 172 (2017: 170) slot seats, the gross win from
slot machines increased to HK$82.7 million (2017: HK$80.4
million). Revenue from the slot machines increased to HK$39.3
million (2017: HK$38.2 million), accounting for 2.6% of the
Group’s total revenue. Average win per seat per day grew up by
9.5% to HK$1,431 (2017: HK$1,307).

HOTEL REVENUE

The Group’s hotel revenue derives from the hospitality income of
GEH and IHM. The hotel revenue was HK$245.0 million (2017:
HK$251.1 million), accounting for 16.3% of the total revenue.

As of 31 March 2018, GEH and IHM provided 307 and 287
guest rooms, respectively. During the Year, the average room
rates of GEH and IHM were HK$872 (2017: HK$820) per night
and HK$476 (2017: HK$412) per night, with occupancy rates of
93% (2017: 91%) and 94% (2017: 95%), respectively. Combined
room revenue was HK$100.1 million (2017 HK$99.2 million).
Combined revenue from food and beverage was HK$112.7
million (2017: HK$119.4 million), while the aggregate amount
of rental income and other revenue was HK$32.2 million (2017:
HK$32.5 million).

OUTLOOK

In view of intensified competition in Macau and other countries,
the Group continuously enhances its overall efficiency and
strengthens its market position through capitalising on its
competitive edges, including a strong network of quality
customers and outstanding customer service. In response
to market conditions, the Group actively manages customer
segmentation and focuses on the segment which offers the
greatest potential for growth, in order to maximise its profitability.
Meanwhile, the Group retains an active base of customers
and ensures long-term satisfaction and loyalty by delivering
compelling experiences that are tailored to individual customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEEEREE

Upon the completion of large-scale tourism projects, along
with government initiatives to boost infrastructure development,
Macau's position as a global leisure and tourism hub will be
further reinforced. On the demand side, sustained growth
in Macau’'s gaming market is expected, on the back of the
increase in numbers of Chinese outbound travellers, which is
largely driven by the expanding wealth effect and the rise of
China’s middle class. The Group is optimistic regarding growth
prospects for Macau’s gaming market, and is actively reviewing
growth strategies and value-creating opportunities in Macau.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s number of employee was
1,164 (2017: 1,196). Total staff costs including Directors’
remuneration and the other staff costs for the Year were
HK$441.8 million (2017: HK$435.2 million). Employees’
remuneration was determined in accordance with individual's
responsibilities, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Staff benefits include
medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and other
competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out
in the section headed “Share Options” on pages 112 and 113.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGERS
EEkEREBRABZERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

(CHAIRPERSON)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 62, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in March 2000. Ms. Luk is
also the Non-executive Director and Chairperson of Emperor
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163) (“Emperor
International”), which is an indirect holding company of the
Company. She worked in the banking industry for almost 10
years. Ms. Luk graduated from The University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WONG CHI FAIl, aged 62, the Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991. He has been
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth
and development and overseeing the financial management of
the Group. He is the Chairman of the Executive Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company as well
as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a
director of four listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Emperor
International, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code:
887) (“Emperor W&J"), Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock
Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture Group”) and Ulferts International
Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts International”), all being
associated corporations of the Company. Having over 30
years of finance and management experience, Mr. Wong has
diversified experience in different businesses ranging from
hotel and hospitality to manufacturing, property investment
and development, retailing of watch and jewellery, cinema
development and operation, wholesaling and retailing of
furniture, financial and securities services, artiste management,
entertainment production and investment as well as media and
publication. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGERS
EEkEREBRABZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 55, the Executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Fan joined the Company in 1991. She has
been responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing different
functions within the Group. She is also the Chairperson of the
Corporate Governance Committee, a member of the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company as well
as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan is
also a director of Emperor International, Emperor W&J, Emperor
Culture Group and Ulferts International. Having over 29 years of
corporate management experience, she possesses diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from hotel and
hospitality to property investment and development, retailing
of watch and jewellery, cinema development and operation,
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial and securities
services, artiste management, entertainment production and
investment as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer by
profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds
a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

YU KING TIN, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in August 2013. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance Committee
of the Company. Mr. Yu has worked in various organizations
including international certified public accountants firms and
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is currently one of the senior
management in the finance department of a conglomerate in
Hong Kong. Mr. Yu graduated from the Peking University with
a Bachelor's Degree in Law and The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Master’s Degree in Corporate Finance. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a Certified Tax Advisor and a member of
the Society of Registered Financial Planner.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGERS
ESENRSREEAEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR

KWAN SHIN LUEN, SUSANNA, aged 51, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2015. She is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Ms. Kwan is also the
Independent Non-executive Director of Hypebeast Limited
(Stock Code: 8359). Ms. Kwan has a legal practice focusing on
corporate/commercial and corporate finance matters in Hong
Kong for more than 20 years, including mergers & acquisitions,
regulatory compliance, public offerings, private placement of
securities and open offers, joint ventures and securities related
compliance. She practices and specializes as a corporate
finance and legal and compliance lawyer. Ms. Kwan graduated
from the London School of Economics (London).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

LAl KA FUNG, MAY, aged 52, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2016. She is the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Ms. Lai is a Certified Public
Accountant and has been engaged in the audit field for more
than 20 years. She is a Principal Partner of May K.F. Lai & Co.
& H.H. Liu & Co., Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lai is also
an Independent Non-executive Director of Chinlink International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 997). She was previously an
Independent Non-executive Director of Emperor W&J until 24
May 2017. Ms. Lai is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and obtained a Master’s
Degree of Arts in International Accounting from City University of
Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRE

The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 56 and 57 of this annual
report. The dividends paid during the Year and proposed to
be paid for the Year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.026 per share for the Year
(2017: HK$0.025 per share), amounting to approximately
HK$33,866,000 (2017: HK$32,564,000), was paid to the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.057 per share for the Year (2017: HK$0.057 per
share), amounting to approximately HK$74,135,000 (2017:
HK$74,245,000) to those Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members on 17 August 2018 (Friday), subject
to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 9 August 2018 (Thursday) (“2018
AGM").

BUSINESS REVIEW AND
PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5
to 10. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 40 to 42 of this annual report and notes 31 and 32(b) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
there is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Company’s key stakeholders, the Group’s environmental policy
and performance as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 131 of this
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on a market basis at HK$679,300,000. An
increase in fair value of HK$53,100,000 has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

EEEHRE

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of investment properties of the Group as at 31 March
2018 is set out on page 132 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$47,789,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out on page 60 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 March 2018 represent the retained profits
of HK$434,179,000 (2017: HK$527,617,000).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme adopted in 2013 as set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu King Tin

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

Biographical details of the Directors and senior managers as
at the date of this report are set out from pages 11 to 13 of this
annual report. Details of Directors’ remunerations are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”)
and Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna shall retire by rotation at
the 2018 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for
re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2018 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings
that may be brought against the Directors and the directors of
the Group.
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> DIRECTORS’ REPORT <
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF wHRREEITHEANB R R
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND Y ~ 0 BH s 1y B A HE 58 v B
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, 2R R
UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the H2018F3A31H EERARNAIZEELT
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, HBABRARQRRNHEEHLE (TEREH
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its KEEEH ([FERPEEH ) FEXVIR)

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Z /%) ABERND R EEZERHEE AR TR
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the 1E#EH REIEEHIEIS2MEE T 2 E AT
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of 7 EFZ R AR X BRIBEANRRMZES
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock #E1TEAX SHMIZETH| ([HEREHE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant E%<FAl|)BMEARRIREEBBAR S
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors ARAQAE ([BXFT|) 2EZMABWT

adopted by the Company (“EEH Securities Code”) were as

follows:

(A)LONG POSITION INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY
TR A 2 W Z 5 AT B AR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each of the Company (the “Shares”)
A4 7] £F R I 160.000178 70 2 PR (TR ])

Capacity/Nature Number of Approximate %
Name of Director of interests issued Shares held holding
EEps B ERHE FReERITROKE BAERBES
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 851,352,845 65.36%

(“Ms. Semon Luk”) fic (B 7 == (Note)
pE NSt (H1at)
([FEZx])

Note: Vo
These Shares were held by Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited, ZERMBHRAEBER  HAZE2EMNBARIRE
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor International. Emperor IREHEERER A E - HEFHE T — M
International is a company with its shares listed in Hong Kong and as at B REE LMz AR BR2018F3A31H -
31 March 2018, approximately 74.71% of its issued shares was held by W74T1% 2 EBTRMDBEZSEEH (BEK)EZE
Emperor International Group Holdings Limited (‘Emperor International BRERAR([RESR BERFE &
Group Holdings”). Emperor International Group Holdings is wholly owned 25 BRI B2 RiE L (TEEL])K
by Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) which is held by STC 3z 2#{55EThe Albert Yeung Discretionary
International Limited (“STC International”) in trust of The Albert Yeung Trust ([AY Trust |) 2 % 5E ASTC International
Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”), a discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Limited ([STC International | )58 215
Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). By virtue of being the spouse of EEERBRAR ((BIRELER])2EH
Dr. Albert Yeung as founder of the AY Trust, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed B ERELLTAGEL (BAY TrustZ BIZA)
interests in the same Shares. ZBE BHRAEEZSRMOAER -
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> DIRECTORS’ REPORT <
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF i R 3 RATHN Bt
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND Y ~ HH B B Ay B2 18 RE b B
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, B2Z2HEERIRE (&)

UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (continued)

(B) LONG POSITION INTERESTS IN ORDINARY SHARES OF ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS
7S HH B 0 T 2 3 I B AT R AR

Number of
Name of issued ordinary
associated Capacity/ shares held Approximate %
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests e 81T holding
EEnS B EE S8 B, EnitE EERYE MABERESHK
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor International Interest of spouse 2,747,610,489 74.71%
B2+ HEFE A (B HE o= (Note)
(H1at)
Emperor W&J Interest of spouse 3,630,950,000 52.76%
EEERKE A (B 7 = (/\/O\f\e)
(H1at)
Ulferts International Interest of spouse 600,000,000 75.00%
B { b B R (g ] (Note)
(H1:t)
Ms. Vanessa Fan Emperor International Beneficial owner 10,500,000 0.29%
BRE HERE EmEAA
Mr. Yu King Tin Emperor W&J Beneficial owner 80,000 0.001%
REXKE HEERIKE EmEAA
Note: Kz -
Emperor International, Emperor W&J and Ulferts International are BB - EBEKRKE REBERES BRMHR
companies with their shares listed on the Stock Exchange. These BEAZFT BT 2 A A - S EBRMD TYBAY Trusts
respective shares were ultimately owned by the AY Trust whose founder BEEA BT AAY TrustZ BISZ A - EREEL
is Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. TREBETZRE  BERARBZERMDAE
Semon Luk had deemed interests in the same shares. T ©

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the & kX FAT# % &5 #201843A318 i
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests EZEZSHARNFTZ T ETHABRAA A K
or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and HAMABELE (EELESRBEKMNE
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations ~ XV&B) Z E R B - #EREAX (D f2 (& 7 35 b
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO). BEMERIOXE -
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme in August
2013 (“Share Option Scheme”). Particulars of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements. No share options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at no time
during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or their spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates was interested in any business which was considered
to compete or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group as required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to any Director or chief
executives of the Company, the persons or corporations (other
than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had,
or were deemed or taken to have an interest and short position
in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”)
or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)
LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES
Wy Z B

EEEHRE

Name of Shareholder

BRREB HA

Capacity/Nature of interests

56 #EtE

Emperor International Interest in a controlled corporation

HE B RZEGEE 2 #E
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation
B RERER MZEHEE 2 #

Trustee of the AY Trust
AY TrustZ Z5EA

STC International

Founder of the AY Trust
AY TrustZ 8|57 A

Dr. Albert Yeung
BiEL

Note:

These Shares were the same shares as those set out under Section (A) of
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above in which Ms. Semon Luk has
deemed interests.

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31
March 2018, no short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares were recorded in the DI Register.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in the DI Register or as otherwise notified to the
Company.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS,
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company:

(A)

PROVISION OF SERVICES IN RELATION TO

GRAND EMPEROR HOTEL

On 19 February 2010, Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou"), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an agreement (‘“Agreement”’) with Sociedade de
Jogos de Macau, S.A., (“SJM”), a company incorporated
under the laws of Macau, for the provision of services or
obligations comprising the management services and the
promotion services to SUM by Tin Hou from 1 October 2009
until the termination: (i) by either party or on the expiration
of SUM’s gambling license under the Gaming Concession
Contract on 31 March 2020; or (ii) any earlier termination
thereof; or (iii) winding up or cessation of business of either
party. In consideration for the provision of services, Tin
Hou together with the nominated junket promoter which
is a fellow subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly owned by the
Company shall be entitled to a share of the gross win and
gross loss in respect of the monthly operating performance
of the gaming area located at the Grand Emperor Hotel and
bear all necessary operational expenses in relation to the
operation of the gaming area.

SJM is principally engaged in gaming business in Macau
and is one of the six concessionaires/sub-concessionaires
licensed to carry on casino operations in Macau. SUM has
a 19.99% equity interest in Luck United Holdings Limited,
a company indirectly owned as to 60% by the Company,
and was therefore a connected person of the Company
within the meaning of the Listing Rules by virtue of being
a substantial shareholder of a significant subsidiary of the
Company.

During the Year, the Group’s net receipt under the
Agreement amounted to HK$1,086,857,000.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS,
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

HEHRERR Y - LIl G
K2R KRB S (&)

(B) LEASING OF THE GROUP’S HOTEL PROPERTY FOR THE OPERATION OF

THE COUNTERPARTY

H R A A 0 2 T N S G O R R

Date of

agreement

(DIMIY)
Name of counterparty 1% A
HEEB (B/B/%)
EWJ Macau Company 31/03/2015

Limited (“‘EWJ Macau”)  (supplemental

(Note) agreement dated

EWSRFIBIRA A 31/03/2016)

(TEWJRA]) (H7) (HrW=EEEA
201643A31H)

EWJ Macau 31/03/2016

EWJEFI

Note:

Leased premises

Friti %

Shop Nos. 1 to 4, G/F,, Grand
Emperor Hotel, 251-292D,
Avenida Comercial De Macau
EFIE £ K5 %K251-202D%
EERAEE T 12454

Shop Nos. 2A to 2B, G/F., Grand
Emperor Hotel, 251-292D Avenida
Comercial De Macau

EFIE K5 K251-202D%;
SRR I i T OAZ 2B A

EWJ Macau is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor W&J which
was indirectly controlled by the AY Trust. Ms. Semon Luk, a Director of the
Company, has deemed interests in the above transactions, by virtue of
being an associate of the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust.
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Amount of rental
received during

Major terms the Year
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FET
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(extend to 31/03/2019)

(ERZE201963A31H)

Effective rental: HK$324,888.89

(revised to HK$281,783.33

with effect from 01/04/2016)

per month

B4 57324888895 T

(B2016F4A1H#RIEF]

£281,783.33/8 T )

01/04/2016 - 31/03/2019 912

Effective rental: HK$76,037.50
per month
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS,
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
COMPLIANCE WITH DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Save as the “Rental income from a related company” in the
amount of HK$4,141,000 for the Year as shown in note 36
—“Related Party Transactions” to the consolidated financial
statements which constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all
other transactions as shown in the note thereon are connected
transactions exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the above connected transactions.

EEEHRE

AUDITOR’S LETTER ON DISCLOSED
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group (‘Disclosed CCTs”) as set
out on pages 21 and 22 of this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’'s Letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS,
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
independent non-executive Directors (‘INEDs”) have reviewed
the Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into:

EEEHRE

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or
at any time during the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRE

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link to
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current best practice). Remuneration should be paid
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Executive and Non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group and
applicability of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’
fees are paid in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibilities, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salary, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the financial performance of
the Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the Year, the Group made a charitable donation of
HK$50,000.
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EEEHRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented 87.1% of
the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer accounted for
83.8% of the Group’s total revenue and is the operator of VIP
room, mass market hall and slot machine hall who paid fee for
the services rendered by the Group.

The aggregate amount of purchases and services received
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented
less than 30% of total purchases and services received by the
Group during the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of
a Director or a Shareholder which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had a beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the
above major customers and suppliers of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 27 to 49 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2018 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong
20 June 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company within a sensible
framework. The Company has fully complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year,

THE BOARD

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 March 2018, the Board comprised six Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Company, two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Board considers that this composition
ensures a strong independent element with a balance of
power and influence between individuals on the Board. The
biographies of the Directors are set out from pages 11 to 13 of
this annual report under the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Managers” section.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson since
2000 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information and are properly briefed on issues arising
at the board meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the
board works effectively and performs its responsibilities. She
holds meetings with the INEDs at least once a year.

Both Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Vanessa Fan are responsible
for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth and
development.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal and compliance, accounting or auditing
in business areas who contribute impartial view and make
independent judgment on issues to be discussed at Board
meetings. Each of them has been appointed for an initial term of
one year and shall continue thereafter on a yearly basis subject
to early termination with written notice being served by either
party. The terms of the INEDs are also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election provision under the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

The Company has received a confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. The Board considers each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The INEDs have been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRE

THE BOARD (continued)
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE
BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and
promotion of the success of the Group by directing and
supervising its affairs in the best interests of the Company and
by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial
and management performance of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD
MEMBERS

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) between each other.

DIRECTORS” INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

DELEGATION TO THE MANAGEMENT

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to carry
out the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
formulate business policies and make decision on key business
issues. The Executive Committee shall have all powers and
authority of the Board except the following matters as set out in
a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved by the Board:

28

Publication of final and interim results of the Company
Dividend distribution or other distribution

Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

Major changes to group corporate structure or Board
composition requiring notification by announcements

Publication of the announcements for notifiable transactions
and non-exempted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions

Non-exempted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions

Notifiable transactions requiring Shareholders’ approval

Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

Financial assistance to Directors
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> CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT <

SEEARE

THE BOARD (continued)
INDUCTION, SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity/business interest of the Group
and such induction materials will also be provided to newly
appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
All Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshops/reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company.

EHEE (B
HRZIHE ARG EBE

PIBEFHCERFEEBRRETIESTIRENR
BEE ERARNESZHEBEEAMNERE K%
kR, EBERRE BT ZEBIESE
B MRHEEEREZERERR TEN
REARMERHERLEEN -2BEFC
ﬁtﬁﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ%*Zrﬁ%@
BS&MER MR ED B INR K
FHRHDPXREARFR L BEH EFECE
ERF UWHREFAEEEBN TEEE
BHRESKBIUBEXERUABBEEFR/AR
REITHE BRBEARRREE-

EEMA RSFCETEHESEIZTR
RXEABLEMGE-NAFE FEFCLER
BEXER HARLREBANTEZEZE
we /MBe BEME NEREEHR
FZ AL IEE - Y E RAAR R REEIIL

Name of Directors EEns
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon ﬁ*/J\%ﬁj:
Mr. Wong Chi Fai mEIEEAE
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa BHEL L
Mr. Yu King Tin REXKHE
Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna MEELT
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May RRELZL
Notes /15t ©  (a) corporate governance EER

(b) regulatory HE

(c) finance B 1%

(d) industry specific SEYEL

Topics on training covered o
FrRsE >y

(a), (b) & (c)
(a), (b), (c) & (d)
(a), (b), (c) & (d)
(a), (b) & (c)
(a), (b) & ()
(a), (b) & (c)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRE

THE BOARD (continued) HHEY(E)
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND TIME A2 RS R B A
COMMITMENT

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is AFEEZESFHESZ 2B REHNNOT
set out below:

No. of meeting attended/held

HESH /BTEENY
Corporate
Governance
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Committee Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee rEER Committee Meeting
Espg Ezg ERZEE FMZzEE REZEE ZEg HiTZEE VN
Non-executive Director and Chairperson
FUTESRER
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon 414 N/A iE N/A R E A N/A i A N/A i@ A N/A R iE A 11
BEphert
Executive Directors
HTEE
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Note 1) 4/4 N/A T EH 1 N/A T iEF N/A T iE A 10/10 N
BEBRLE (Mit1)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2) 4/4 N/A T B N/A T iE 1/1 1 10/10 i
EEERL (H72)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHTES
Mr. Yu King Tin (Note 3) 4/4 3/3 il N/A i A 1 N/A i i
REXRELE (H523)
Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (Note 4) 4/4 3/3 N/A T iE A il il N/A N iE A il
BRELL (Hit4)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Note 5) 4/4 3/3 11 11 N/A T N/A i £ 1
RRE L (f1:25)
Total number of meetings held 4 3 1 1 1 10 1
R BY
Notes: Hiz -
1. Chairman of Executive Committee 1. TLZESXE
2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee 2. DBEEBRZEEXR
3. Chairman of Audit Committee 3. BREZEGXE
4. Chairperson of Nomination Committee 4. REZEGXE
5. Chairperson of Remuneration Committee 5 FMEZEEXE

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation of time commitment & s (a)SEEMERAFE B L 2 FEHE
given by each Director; (b) the directorships and major R (O)EEEMBF EETHBE LT ETm:
commitments of each Director; and (c) the attendance rate R(C)EEEREEZTS 2R EENZERE
of each Director on full Board and their respective Board EB&@HULKBREAS I EHFXRE EF€
committee meetings as well as general meeting, the Board RA RAFERN 2EEEHENEEH
is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in BFEEBITEEZRS -

performing their responsibilities during the Year.
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SEEARE

THE BOARD (continued)
BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well
as all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting.
Relevant meeting materials together with all appropriate,
accurate, clear complete and reliable information are generally
sent to all Directors and relevant committee members at least
3 days before each meeting to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

Draft and final versions of the minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings, drafted in sufficient details by the
secretary of the meetings, were circulated to the Directors
for their comment and record respectively. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates have a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board Meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have been
delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance
Committee and Executive Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs.
Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees. Details of
the Board Committees are set out below:

HHG (&)

HRG R
BERTHERNETRT-EETERD
FRERARNEENEIERE > BR LR
BoRREEEEGRE MAERAZAA
Fe s«

ERRAWMEZHT RFREHEHT
FHEBAEMEESENERRE -EFEE
HeZ2BEEIRNERM4REXRTE
E-RERBETARIIA —REANZEE

ERERZE K B FRAMERMFHER
PREBA - EREBM M cH I SEER - AR

BEEFHAIBERER

KRR EFLERAFHEE  E5eg
ELEFLZESERLBEZYREERTE
BAGRXTESF HHHEBEEXREELRE
R/ R -BRSHELB I EABRAWMER
7oAt EMESERELE S EBMELEM
AERREER-

FESGCESERTERCERTFEES
ERARBERZNGEFHR ARFREMIAG
MEFSSAMEANEERIARTARRE -
MZEEHR KL EEFHEARBFERR
BZHBEESRARRERST BT g5
AEZEEETHAIETEARAN -NER
FRBEBEAMmHBYIFRTES MNERE
READBALFEZEERH -

EHEZHG
ARDHEFEBRITHBERRESUNESR .
ERRETRACHESERRTERES
% FMEB® RAEEER LCEEARES
FRMTEER-

BEZEREBg FHZEGRRERZBEEAS
BRERBIUFANTESZ -MEEFERES
ZEEEBESECRHTIHERES Y
FEXRB-BEFZEBEFRBHINWT:
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THE BOARD (continued) mHY(F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) HHERH (&)
1. Audit Committee (set up on 15 September 2004) 1. #¥ Z A & (F20044F9/15H
B )

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Yu EZZESHR BB IUIRTESAE
King Tin (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, BENRARERLEE (REZEES
Susanna and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May. EE) BAEELXLTRBRBE XL
The specific written terms of reference of the Audit BERLZEG RS HEBESE A RO
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock REFIRANGBUEN BZELZES
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is DEHRQ@QREE EFLERERINE
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations to REMAESSRBEEBER S (b)BF
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal K BERONEEAZ SR 2 B M A R B A2
of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and monitoring the Fr o BB RB R (c)ft/FEINEZEL
external auditor’'s independence and objectivity and B2 B R ZEEIEF : R()BEYTBE
effectiveness of the audit process; (c) approving the BIRERPBEREHE BREERA
remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor; HEZEREF BZREZESNARFERIT
and (d) reviewing financial information and overseeing the T=ZRkg&E-

financial reporting system, risk management and internal

control procedures. The Audit Committee held three

meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee ERLZEENAFEFMBT 2 IIEME

during the Year is set out as follows: 5T -
reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge HERE WMBEEERRINERZ
and/or the external auditor on the effectiveness of audit HEEHEZEF 2 BRERASE
process and the accounting policies and practices EErRA s gt RAIRER UKk
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of the HZE2017F3A31H LR FE Z
annual financial statements for the financial year ended FREVBHREREZE2017F9H30
31 March 2017 and the interim financial statements for H1E6fE A 2 B B ¥k 2 £
the six months ended 30 September 2017; L) S/ EE C

ii. reviewed with senior management and finance-in- i. HEeRfAEREERMBEERIAE
charge on the effectiveness of the risk management = = b B IR K A B B R AT 2 K
and internal control systems of the Group; R

ii. annual review of the non-exempt continuing connected i, WAEBARFEZIFREFHERE
transactions of the Group for the Year; REETFERRM:

iv. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 31 iv. F|HEE2018F3A31H LA KF
March 2018, reviewed the independence of the external B2 BZETE - W at INEE A BR A
auditor and approved the engagement of external B R AT INEZEA &
auditor; and

v. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of V. BERR2017F8H24H R T2 AR F]
external auditor at the annual general meeting of the BRAFRKE ([20017TRRBF K
Company held on 24 August 2017 (‘2017 AGM"). g)) LEHMZREIINEZBMAES

FRHEBER-
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THE BOARD (continued) HEY(£)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

2.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 11 July
2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Mr. Yu King Tin, both being INEDs, and Mr.
Wong Chi Fai, being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee
is primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on (a) the Company’s policies and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management; (b)
the remuneration packages of non-executive directors;
and (c) the specific remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i reviewed the Directors’ fee and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management and
recommended to the Board on their specific packages;
and

iii. reviewed the Terms of Reference of the Remuneration
Committee and made recommendation to the Board.

EHZEHRG (#F)

2.

FFWZ B & (20054711 H
W)
GMEBCH-EMEBMEMR  HH Rz
BN TEERRELL (AREE
EIR)EAERAERNTESES
488 50 4 o

;&f

FMEEgr AREE ﬁﬂﬂ%%ﬁl—fﬂ
AT R AR DR AL ER] - @”KE\
2XEEERR(@)EFA ﬂZ%%&n,?&E.
BEZHMBER RERE: (b)FERNITES
ZEEFEE RC)ENRTES e
ERECREFMNSENESSRMHE
BER- $¢E%§$Z B 5 I N
qmﬁﬂﬂ&%ﬁﬁmo FMEZEERA
FEBRTT—REF-

FMEEenN AFEMET 2 TERR
;o

BENEEFRS YMEZSRMHE
B

i $‘1¢ﬂ”%$&%‘ MEIEE 2R
g/ 8 UTRZEFSH
/E{BZWZ#%E% 4

i. MAFHEZESRELEYRES
@TET,\T’E% E o
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THE BOARD (continued) mHY(F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) HEEBG (Z
3. Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 3. #EZAE (20124328 H
2012) J )
The Nomination Committee consists of three members, REZBGH=-FEKEBHEK EH5A
namely Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (Chairperson of the BURNTESHBEELL (RZEE
Committee) and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May, both being INEDs, SXF)EERBE LT RHITESSD
and Ms. Vanessa Fan, being an Executive Director. +o
The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination REZLZEE LRSS EBESE ] A
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock RRAARREER -REEEE
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the FTERERFEQRIESTTHERE A
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, FREZl: (O)RATESZIEER:
size and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board CETEERBCBERMEGEAL
Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy for the BEEEERE: ARESSET EH
nomination of Directors and identifying suitable candidates ST ERNATCESRESTEIE
for directorship; (d) making recommendations to the Board MEESREEEBRES ke)fZBE L
on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election or re- FHITESNE LN RORIZTES
designation of Directors and succession planning for g A KE - REZEENAFESR
Directors; and (e) assessing the independence of INEDs; TT—REFe
and (f) reviewing the time commitment of each Director. The
Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
A summary of the work performed by the Nomination REZEENAFEMRBRITCIERE
Committee during the Year is set out as follows: YT
reviewed structure, size and diversity of the Board; BAEFTENREB ABRZT
1t
ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs; i, WNBEVIERTEENE LM
ii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on their i. MANEEFRBTESBREZCRKRERKR
time commitment in performing the duties as Directors; AZHERE &
and
iv. recommended the Board on the re-election of Directors iv. BREBR2017TREAFAE LEE
at the 2017 AGM. MESFZRHEERER
As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims EEEMRMNCESESZ TLRES®E
to achieve diversity on Board in the broadest sense in NEERAEEREEFSZ L UR
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity BAARIEBMEMAEREEMTR
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company. I RBRRZENBHERE - EEE
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range E2REESDNENRZITEZEE 21
of diversity perspectives, including gender, age, cultural MR Fie XMERBEER HEEWK
and educational background, profession qualification Mg Fae ME RGBS -IRBEE
and experience, skill, knowledge and length of service. N TN EREENESNERERS
The Nomination Committee will also assess the merits ZERESZFZIREAZERLKER I
and contribution of any Director proposed for re-election NWRBEAZOBERESEL TENE
or any candidate nominated to be appointed as Director o EMEARRR D EREREE/HIE
and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the e
benefits of diversity on the Board that would complement
the Company's corporate strategy.
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THE BOARD (continued)
BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

4.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28
March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), being an Executive Director, Mr. Yu King Tin
and Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna, both being INEDs,
a representative from company secretarial function and
a representative from finance and accounts function.
The specific written terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee is available on the Company’s
website. The primary duties of the Corporate Governance
Committee are (a) reviewing the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company and making
recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements of
the Company; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings with the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Report.
The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board:;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

EHEE (E)
EHZEHRG (F)

4.

EEERZEZ BT (FR201293H
28H Br)
PEEAEESHTERBER  HD
RlAERTEEE LY+ (AREERT
) BYERTEESREXALERE
ERL+ —RATWEBERER—
LR EHBERE P EERES
& AREEEBEREANAN T
EH PETAREEE I IERERE
()i 51 A B R B ABCE R E B A
EERMEEES: ORI RERA
ATERTAAT EZRRESHENE
THERER: T RIRERE
ERAEEEDESETARATNBER
SEAMTATI: RIRERES
RERERE I REEEEHE
R ()it A A T BT R AT A2 15
MRAREZHE CETAEEERN
AEFBRITT k&S

TCEEARZBERAFEMETZIIE
MEFHIWT

fE) BRI IR
R

i. BMAARETEIRLREERENE
ZBREER:

i. MAEERDREEE ZH LR

BEEER

v, AT ROR S AR B R EUE B
THTE R

v. BEARTETEEREATHZE
RERCEERES ZRE -
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THE BOARD (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

5. Executive Committee (set up on 25 November
2014)
The Executive Committee consists of two members,
namely Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Chairman of the Committee)
and Ms. Vanessa Fan, both being the Executive Directors.
The primary duties of the Executive Committee are (a)
formulating business policies and making decision on
matters relating to the management and operations of the
Company; and (b) having all power and authorities of the
Board except those matters specifically reserved for the
full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted by the
Board from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, reports to the Chairperson on governance matters
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group's affairs. The
Company Secretary confirmed that she has complied with all the
required qualifications, experience and training requirements
under the Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EEH Securities Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standards set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions of Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings in the
Model Code and EEH Securities Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information
to the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before it for approval.
The Directors believe that they have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgment and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and
ensured the consolidated financial statements are prepared
on a “going concern” basis. The auditor of the Company has
made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.
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EREBRS

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT MEREFEE (&)

(continued)

The management has provided all members of the Board with EEECSAMESSMEKEREBRIBH
monthly updates on internal financial statements so as to give MREMEFMEL UNABBREFEASE
the Directors a balanced and understandable assessment of B ZXIR - BREAISNETRIRIEED
the Group’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient &F1& e

details.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND Ja\ B 4 B Ke N B b
INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation and AEPESIEH K INKEE N B F XK S EEHE
day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company in  Z- YW A A EKE XK B IZ REE
achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies and ZREHEFRREEFNEZEZARRAR
procedures within the Group are with the primary objective of &I N A EPEEIE K 2 EAMESIZ (H— & $E

providing general guidance and recommendations on a basic 5I&ER -
framework of risk management and internal control systems.

A review has been conducted on (i) the internal control ARFEEDHA N EETE @ ()R I0E
measures and procedures covering all material controls, $EMEIERF REAE A BEFBE-
including financial, operational and compliance controls; and (i) “ENMABERE : R(INVEZEHBERAFHE
risk management functions in its principal subsidiaries for the REERE: —

Year as follows:—

A. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES A.

Sl
Ip
&
g
P

The Board acknowledged that it is its responsibility to ESENEESEIRE NERADA

ensure that the Company establishes and maintains R REFSERAYBREERA

appropriate and effective risk management and internal ﬁﬁ%?&??ﬁﬁ(f%%%ﬁj\)‘ RERRE

control systems (“Systems”). The Systems are designed EEEM Fﬁﬁ?fﬁﬁbﬁﬁ%ﬁ%EFZ@

to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve Bz - @—IJEK i e PR L BX 18 R B i

business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but BIRMIEREIRE

not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or

loss.

The key objectives of the Systems include: ZERGNETEBERE:

e safeguarding assets e REEE

e ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of o MRMBLILREZ TR %
financial records and reports e kA Bt

e promoting adherence to policies, procedures, o (RHEEBE B AR KA 2K
regulations and laws 1&

e promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations o (REZEZAMMERBE

B. GOVERNANCE CONTROL B. HifEi# \

The control structure of the Systems is set out as follows: RERGOEEEEEYOT

The Board EE

e responsible for the Systems and reviewing their e BEZFZFRASMUBHNHEARM
effectiveness

e oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with the s HUERZZECMPTHEEEZSE
assistance of Audit Committee BN
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

B. GOVERNANCE CONTROL (continued)
The Board (continued)

38

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority

determine the nature and extent of significant risk that
the Company is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives and formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Systems with the management
annually to ensure that the management has performed
its duty to have effective Systems. This discussion
includes the adequacy of resources, staff qualification
and experience, training programmes and budget
of the company’s accounting and financial reporting
function

consider major findings on internal control matters
raised by internal or external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board

The management (includes heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Systems properly
and ensure the Systems are executed effectively

monitoring risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
their day-to-day operations

give prompt response to, and follow up the findings on
internal control matters raised by internal or external
auditors

provide confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness
of the Systems
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SEEARE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND JE\ B B e NP B (2)

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

B. GOVERNANCE CONTROL (continued) B. Bkl (&)
Internal Audit Department AN BB 2= A% B P

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems in respect
of all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance aspects and alerted the management
on the audit review findings or irregularities and advise
them on the implementation of necessary steps and
actions to enhance the internal controls of the Group.
The result of internal audit reviews and agreed action
plans are reported to the Audit Committee and the
Board.

C. RISK MANAGEMENT
(1) Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks are
evaluated by the Board and management based on (i)
the severity of the impact of the risks on the Company’s
financial results; (ii) the probability that the risks will
occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which risks
could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

e Risk elimination — The management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation — The management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

e Risk control and monitoring — It involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable
and how to address those that are not. Accidents
and other situations involving loss or near-loss will
be investigated and properly documented as part
of the effort to manage risks.

HASEAREML BENRGRSF
PIEEREETHZ A RERAX
VEEIT AT MBS RF G - W R B IR
EREEZRNERATRBITR
RRERBEBZRERITHARSA
SEASEZERARSFRERTEER -
MBS 2 ERIEBEZITE
HESRERZESRESEE
o

C. J&l by 8 P
(1) J g & PEFE )7

[\ f B PR AR B B 4 AL B A R LB
ATl LB B 3R 4 B K A B B AR %

LA
mwEt e

EHEBEZRNEETRENESHE
NE R N A = 2 - 2
EiEEIA)ES BSKERFE#H
AE-E2E2EeNEEEREGNRR
HRARNRYTBEETENHRER
& (iNEERB A AT REM « K (ii)A
S ERREEITRRRTE -

RBRER TG NRABEIRATTT
B R

e ERFR-EEEAMELE
mE TESREE 28R
[ B -

o RBERARKFE-EEEBRE
RS B EERRZ
AR RERBEEREE
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C. mbais (&)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
C. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(1) Risk Management Process (continued)

40

Risk retention — The management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required. The
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk
does not increase to an unacceptable level.
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(2) Signiticant Risks and Strategies (2) A FE R R
Certain significant risks have been identified through REEDFBRRER NFERF

the process of risk identification and assessment. Such
significant risks of the Group and their respective key
strategies/control measures are set out below:

a)

Economic and political conditions:

Changes and volatility in general economic
conditions, and stringent policies implemented by
PRC Central Government and Macau Government
impacting hospitality and travel related activities
in Macau. Any more adverse change in one of the
above situations would have significant impact to
the Group’s business.

e  Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in the PRC or global economy and
adjust business strategic plans to cope with
these changes;

e Explore opportunities to expand business or
market and broaden the customer base;

e While keeping high-quality hospitality services,
endeavour to control expenses and manpower
or reallocate resources in an efficient manner;
and

e Attend more roadshows which are held by
Macao Government Tourism Office in Mainland
China and Asia in order to enhance the brand
awareness of the Group’s hotels.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEEARE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
C. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) C. mpEEM (&)

(2) Signiticant Risks and Strategies (continued) (2) F A g R (42)
b) Keen competition in hotel and gaming industry: b) JBERIERTTE R F R -

JE b A BE e N ER B ()

Increased competition in hotel and gaming industry
in Macau due to opening of more luxury hotels and
casinos, upgrade of existing hotels by competitors
as well as increasing in number of VIP rooms,
gaming tables and slot machines from existing
casinos and among other Asian countries (e.g.
Malaysia, Singapore, Vietnam and Cambodia).
No assurance that the growth of Macau’'s tourism
industry would increase in line with or outpace the
supply of hotel accommodation, casino gaming
tables and slot machines and this could adversely
affect the Group’s business.

e Enlarge and expand the footprint of the Group
in sourcing hotel and gaming patrons;

e Devote to provide the best personalised
service to the guests in order to give them a
memorable experience; thereby differentiating
GEH from other hotels and enabling them to
make GEH be their first choice when they
come back to Macau;

e Cooperate with travel agencies and airline
companies to develop long-haul visitor market;

e launch promotions featuring GEH's excellent
location to attract guests to extend length of
overnight stay, integrating with local tourism
resources, especially World Cultural Heritage
scenic spots; and

e Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities from time to time in
order to encourage existing gaming patrons to
come back to GEH and attract new customers
around the world.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
C. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(2) Significant Risks and Strategies (continued)

42

c) Anti-money laundering (“AML"):

a)

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 2454405 A PR A ]

No assurance that the existing AML policies of the
Group are in compliance with applicable AML laws
and that the policies in place could sufficiently
prevent or detect the occurrence of money
laundering activities at casinos.

e Review the existing compliance policies
regularly;

e Comply with the reporting and compliance
procedures as requested by Gaming
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Inspection and Coordination Bureau or the ZHmEREHREF:
AML compliance department of SUM;
e  Stay alert to the industrial practices; and e REMTETEH K

e  Give regular training to the staff.
Reliance on SUM’s Concession Contract:

Reliance on SJM's Concession Contract which will
expire on 31 March 2020 and the existing services
agreement with SUM to run the Group’s gaming
business. Termination of the SJM’'s Concession
Contract or the services agreement with SJM for
whatever reasons or the renewal thereof is not
granted to or made by SJM or unfavourable change
in the terms of the services agreement would have
impact on the gaming business of the Group.

e Stay alert to the policy and government
practice and the industrial practices and make
changes to the existing business plans or
strategies, as and when appropriate; and

e Keep close communications with SJM in this
respect.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
D. INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledged that the management had been
progressively implementing an adequate internal control
system to ensure the effective functioning of the Group’s
operational, financial and compliance areas as follows:

(1) Opera tional

Information flow: The transparent information flow
alerts us promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking
with historical database and comparisons with the
same also acts as a detecting device for spotting
unusual activities;

Approach taken: The management conducted
interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the risk management
and internal control systems and evaluating
findings of any deficiencies in the design of
the Group’'s risk management and internal
control system, providing recommendations for
improvement and assessing the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on
the risk management and internal control will be
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually;

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and/or external
publication;

Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the business
activities allows close tracking of various inputs
and outputs of the Company’s business such as
raw materials, human resources, products and
customer relationship. It also tracks audit trails in
the authorization system, under which permissions
and responsibility of authorisation are clearly
identified and adequate records can be maintained
in the system,;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
D. INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)
(1) Operational (continued)

44

V.

Vi.

Vil.

Reports and variance analysis: Such reports
and analysis of each segment in the upstream,
midstream and downstream are conducted on
regular basis such that the performance of each
point of sales and each product category can be
easily accessible;

Safeguard of assets: Surprise physical count of
cash, chips and client deposits held in casino
and coupons for casino are performed by Income
Audit Team of GEH and reviewed by Internal Audit
Department to safeguard the assets; and

Services quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of hotel and gaming business
segments to ensure the service quality; and
questionnaires are provided in different outlets to
welcome customers’ feedbacks for our service
improvement.

2) FmanCJa]

Proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

Regular reports on revenue, marker receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s financial performance;

Monthly updates on internal financial statements
are provided to all Directors which give a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail; and

Annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s
accounting policies and the applicable laws and
regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND

INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)
D. INTERNAL CONTROLS (continued)
(3) Compliance
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of any
one or more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate, for the
attention of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary, and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality of
inside information/price sensitive information until
proper dissemination of the inside information;

ii. Policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements which shall be
reviewed and monitored regularly by the Corporate
Governance Committee as delegated by the Board;

ii. CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations, the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements; and

iv. Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. Such arrangement
will be reviewed by the Audit Committee which
ensures that proper arrangement is in place for fair
and independent investigation of the matters.

E. MANAGEMENT CONFIRMATION

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board
had reviewed the Systems and were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Systems.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’” communication
policy and review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of
annual general meetings and special general meetings, if any,
which may be convened for specific purposes which provide
opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements, annual
reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under the
Listing Rules and press releases providing updated information
of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest information of the
Group in the Company’s website at www.emp296.com; (iv) the
holding of press conference from time to time; and (v) meeting
with investors and analysts on a regular basis and participating
investor roadshows and sector conferences.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
presentations are made when financial results are announced.
The Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit the
Company’s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
each substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2017
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of all other general meetings
were sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before
the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2017 AGM and the chairperson/members
of the Board Committee and the external auditor were available
at the 2017 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders.
With the assistance of Company Secretary, the Chairperson of
the meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll
during the meeting.

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on 9
August 2018 which will be conducted by way of poll.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
N 'M\Aiﬁd:

SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Code.

CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING (“SGM”) AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (i) must state the object(s) of
the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the principle place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for attention of the Company Secretary, and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the
Company’s share registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene an SGM by serving sufficient notice
to all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been
verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as
requested.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a day
not more than two months after the date of deposit of such
requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may convene
a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date of deposit of the
requisition. A meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings are to be convened by Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING (“SGM”) AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

(continued)

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all
the Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if
an AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.

PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

ENQUIRIES FROM SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company whose contact details are shown on “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” of this Annual Report.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standard. Members
of the Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tomatsu is independent and has
recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s
auditor at the 2018 AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, has rendered audit services and certain
non-audit services to the Company and the remuneration paid/
payable to it by the Company is set out as follows:

Service rendered Fir 32 (AR 75
Audit services % SR 5
Non-audit services % SR 7%

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BRI RS

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT
HOTEL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 56 to 130, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BRI RS

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter
Il S A A% I

Valuation of investment properties
REMEZHE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significant
assumptions and judgements involved in the
valuation as set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RITHEREMEZHER —EHRAREZEE  REMR
ARG B TS IRAR M T APRE - (A B R E KRR & -

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties held
for rental under operating leases of commercial
properties in Macau amounted to HK$679,300,000 as
at 31 March 2018. Fair value changes of investment
properties of HK$53,100,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2018.
NGRS M B A M 14FT R B8 - 1X20184F3 A 31
B BE5ERERXVELEHENRMFAELE
Fig 2 1% & W% £679,300,000/8 70 - HEMEAAEE
2 $)53,100,000/% 7T 2 N B £2018F3A31H I F /&
ZEeERkEMEEKERANER -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of
qualified professional property valuers using property
valuation techniques with significant unobservable
inputs and assumptions of market conditions,
including comparable market transactions with
adjustments to reflect different locations or
conditions.

NGRS M MRMTAFRE BEEEZREME
AREBEDRE-HEBLAEREXRYERGLETAYE
BERDG (ERFREATABREHARBELRET R
B BREFAEALR 2 TIHRZ S AR E MR G
I BZEMELET ZBERE-

PRt IH (2)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AT 0 ey it B B S A A S O

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties included:

ATRAGEREMEAEZRELEZEFBHE:

e FEvaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent qualified
professional property valuers;

. EW‘E%%I%%3%%%#’/7)%16@%27%‘ﬁ%ﬂ&@

e Understanding the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions applied
by holding discussion with the independent
qualified professional property valuers; and

e HBUVSEREZRWEMERMETNW® AT RA
ERAMMMEREE HEREARSR:

e Assessing the reasonableness of the valuation
conducted by the independent qualified
professional property valuers by (i) checking
details of the significant unobservable inputs
including comparable market unit rate of other
similar properties; and (ii) comparing to relevant
market information for the assumptions of
market conditions, including comparable market
transactions, with adjustments to reflect different
locations or conditions.

e BBIFHABZESATAERBARE (BFEHEM
BUMEZAILBMSEE)  R()ELLARHR
ZRBRENHBHISEN (BREABATHER TSR
ZUARBMARMERS GRS  FEBIEEREE
MEMEMPETZEEZ AR M-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BRI RS

Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter
Il S A A% T I

PRt IE (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ASAT AT i B B 9 9 A% 3 I

Recoverability of trade receivables from individual gaming patrons

WEEREEEF 2E R BWRRZ RN

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables
from individual gaming patrons as a key audit
matter due to the estimation uncertainty inherent in
the management’s credit review and recoverability
assessment processes of those trade receivables
from individual gaming patrons as set out in notes 4
and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

AITHEEREENEYEF 28 SRR 2 AT 1A —
ERRERER REMNNGS M BEHRERMFE418F

& EIE%TEZ%ME‘H@%Z*JE'Z%%}*H& ANEER
R E 2 AT R R AR R B A R A T REE 1

As disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s trade receivables from
individual gaming patrons, net of an allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$18,009,000, amounted to
HK$40,170,000 as at 31 March 2018. As set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group takes into consideration the ageing status and
the likelihood of collection of those trade receivables
from individual gaming patrons in determining
whether an allowance for doubtful debts is required.
ﬂmf”\W%$%§W?1wﬁﬁ§ 201843 A 31
= SEENEREP 2B BN (kK RERE
ﬁ1800900&an1§>%4017000@%75 MG & B 7
WKW FT4RTE SERETERAELRERE
R Z B AR HNR&H&@EZ?(IE‘JT%Z*}EZE%J*H&M
Z A el o

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
but does not include the

included in the annual report,

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the recoverability of trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons included
AT G REBERNERYEF 2B RKHZEE
i

e Understanding the management’'s credit review
and recoverability assessment processes of
those trade receivables;

s THMEREEHZZEHERUWNNHEEFZLAWKMD
Z Al REE R RT AR AE

e Assessing the information used by the
management in the process of reviewing the
recoverability of those trade receivables,
including checking the accuracy of the ageing
analysis, on a sample basis; and

o FHMAEEEENRAIEZEE S REWKZ Al s 1L
FIERA 2 BF BRMERERE DT 2 BT
&4

e Evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for
doubtful debts for those trade receivables that
are unlikely to be collected by checking the
repayment history and subsequent settlements
against repayment supporting documents, on a
sample basis.

s BAMEEREFRAXMBEENLHELERMNRE

B SHERRFEAKRA KB 28 HRERIEL Z
REBEREERM-
At B
ERREEREMERAS - HMWENEREE

FAFHNER T BIREREE P ERER LA
ZEEDI TR h B A BRAR ¥R -

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

RITRER B M MR B R R EE M E R
BT At BRI AR E i o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBERE

Other Information (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

H At &R (42)
IATTEZSEAMBRAM S AMTARMHE
HipER WEHBETZEEMERN 2T R
BMBHRIAITREZTN THRFEEAT
— kA BT EREARR IR AR I AT TP
EITH TR ATRARZEMERFEE A
AR AT BMEZFE il A TIAEA
fEH RS 2 FIH -

EHREAOEER A B S MEH
#ZHIE

BERAEZRERBRESIHMASRMZE
BV E ER BB R RIRD 2 WERRER
HEBRNPHERMBHREK L REBEEFLAF
BEMBHRR BB FEARAFFERME
B AR 2 B BRI EEE

KRR AV BRES EF8 8T &%
BEEL R BT (WER) BRELE
HENEEYRAFELEEENGFHE
EEHAR SERESREKERBIL 2T
EEMIE A TARZARIN

== = 42 == e
I BEEARABBEEE

BRENMBRER

\

!

A B R Ak B Rk 2 AT

AITHERAEERRGAVBHRRERES
TEEBNMFFREER MG ERFERR
gt W HEEHAATE R RBANRE - RS
DREARERNREROKER BT (ER
RS ) (FH M AL LA B A o AT ABLARE HY
ARREREMA LB EHAEEE AR
& REKPHRE Y NMRERIEEBE
ERETHBZ AR BRI FEMNEAFERIR
it - $ERIRAML AT BE R ERFF Sk SR AR M AR A - I EL{E
RSB S EEMBE EFERERIEZELR
BMBRRAELNLERE  AIREREK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBERE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBERE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
20 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME <
mEEmkEMEE TSR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$000 HK$’000
(i3 T T
Revenue WA 5 1,498,351 1,613,180
Cost of sales §5 & AR (38,620) (41,405)
Cost of hotel and gaming operations B & & 8% 7% 2 B A (500,808) (517,881)
Gross profit EH 958,923 1,053,894
Other income H A A 44,532 38,222
Fair value changes of investment KEMEAARBEZE
properties 53,100 (16,000)
Other losses H b 518 7 (801) (29,422)
Selling and marketing expenses HENMTHERER (319,139) (378,048)
Administrative expenses THER (255,361) (244,129)
Finance costs M E A 8 (12,386) (14,663)
Profit before taxation B A A1 5 A 9 468,868 409,854
Taxation credit 7t 18 3] ¢ 11 38,862 18,796
Profit for the year FEm 507,730 428,650
Other comprehensive (expense) Hih 2w (Fx) e
income
Items that will not be reclassified to #T & E#H 7 EHE
profit or loss: BahyEA -
Revaluation surplus of prepaid HBREREMER
lease payments and property, FENEERERYE-
plant and equipment transferred Hes R
to investment properties BHAH% - 30,500
Deferred tax on revaluation EREZREYER
surplus of prepaid lease BRNEERELRDE
payments and property, MEE R RIEZ
plant and equipment transferred EHBHZ
to investment properties EIER IR = (3,660)
- 26,840
Item that may be reclassified AEAEEET R
subsequently to profit or loss: BamhrEE -
Fair value change of available-for- A/ HEEKRE 2
sale investments NABEEE (1,390) -
Other comprehensive (expense) FEEMEE (FAX) K
income for the year (1,390) 26,840
Total comprehensive income FETAWEBE
for the year 506,340 455,490
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> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME <
mEEmkEMEE TSR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

2018 2017
Note HK$000 HK$"000
Bt 5 T T
Profit for the year attributable to: FEMREEm A -
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIEZ PN 393,574 346,490
Non-controlling interests FEIT P M = 114,156 82,160
507,730 428,650
Total comprehensive income EihEEE2E RSB :
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZ RN 392,740 362,594
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR M A 113,600 92,896
506,340 455,490
Earnings per share FRAF 13
Basic =N HK$0.3058 T HK$0.27%8 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mAEMBARRE

At 31 March 2018 720183 H31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$000 HK$"000
(i3 TwoT BRI
Non-current assets EMBEE
Investment properties KEME 14 679,300 626,200
Property, plant and equipment LER =Y e 15 1,265,965 1,327,753
Prepaid lease payments T HERE 16 464,900 480,603
Available-for-sale investments AIHEEHERE 19 262,965 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEVE BER
property, plant and equipment ZE2ENFT® 11,625 2,698
Goodwill [EES 17 110,960 110,960
2,795,715 2,548,214
Current assets MENEE
Inventories, at cost FE LKA 14,424 13,619
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H Ath W sk 18 309,249 287,631
Available-for-sale investments AIEHHERE 19 160,109 -
Prepaid lease payments TR HEERIE 16 15,703 15,711
Pledged bank deposit BIRFRITER 20 334 329
Short-term bank deposits RHERTTHER 20 475,516 2,822
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRNIE S 20 3,098,510 3,959,005
4,073,845 4,279,117
Current liabilities mBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENR 21 379,300 212,626
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries X [E ZH B A 7 R I1E 22 3,283 4,092
Amounts due to non-controlling X—RWBERRZ
interests of a subsidiary JEVE AR A R FE 23 107,600 120,800
Taxation payable FET IR 391,561 436,884
Bank borrowing RITEE
— due within one year ——FRNEH 24 - 43,200
881,744 817,602
Net current assets MBEEFE 3,192,101 3,461,515
Total assets less current liabilities  #EER TS EE 5,987,816 6,009,729
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowing RITEE
- due after one year ——F1RFIH 24 - 426,600
Deferred taxation P U =] 26 111,012 104,554
111,012 531,154
5,876,804 5,478,575
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> CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION <
mAEMBARRE

At 31 March 2018 720183 H31H

2018 2017
Notes HK$000 HK$"000
P 5 T T#T
Capital and reserves BARR B

Share capital [i% Z< 27 130 130
Reserves B 3,989,838 3,705,209

Equity attributable to owners of RRAREA ANEGER
the Company 3,989,968 3,705,339
Non-controlling interests 1 AR B 2 30 1,886,836 1,773,236
Total equity RS 5,876,804 5,478,575

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 130 were 568 = F 130EFTE 2 478 IS HRE D 12018
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  F6A20B & E @ UELIRETZE WH 5

20 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: BEERREE:
WONG CHI FAI FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA
BEXE B 8E
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
= =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEREBER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

N 2N A1
Capital ~ Property Investments
redemption revaluation revaluation Non-
Share Share reserve reserve reserve Legal  Retained controlling
capital  premium  FAMEE  WEEM  REE reserve profits  Sub-total ~  interests Total
ek B it et it EERE  REEH AN LR IR A At
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
T#L T T T#L T#L T T T®L T TH#x
(note 29)
(Hit29)
At 1 April 2016 201654718 130 436,765 668 8,478 - 287 2,996,713 3,443,041 1,680,340 5,123,381
Profit for the year FEE - - - - - - 346,490 346,490 82,160 428,650
Revaluation surplus of prepaid ERZRENER
lease payments and property, BUEERER
plant and equipment transferred nE HBERREZ
to investment properties EHAHR - - - 18,300 - - - 18,300 12,200 30,500
Deferred tax on revaluation BRZRENER
surplus of prepaid lease BURERER
payments and property, mE BERZEL
plant and equipment transferred to ~ EERHZ
investment properties BERE - - - (2,196) - - - (2,196) (1,464) (3,660)
Total comprehensive income FER2EYNRLS
for the year - - - 16,104 - - 346,490 362,594 92,896 455,490
2016 final dividend 20165 RHRE
paid in cash DREXH - - - - - - (67,782) (67,732 - (67.732)
2017 interim dividend 017TERBRE
paid in cash S EST0) - - - - - - (32564)  (32,564) - (32.564)
At 31 March 2017 R2017563A318 130 436,765 668 24,582 - 287 3,242,907 3,705,339 1,773,236 5,478,575
Profit for the year FEE - - - - - - 393574 393,574 114,156 507730
Fair value change of AHHEREZ
available-for-sale investments AREEE - - - - (834) - - (834) (556) (1,390)
Total comprehensive (expense) EE2E(RZ)
income for the year gk - - - - (834) - 393,574 392,740 113,600 506,340
2017 final dividend 017TERBRE
paid in cash WREZH - - - - - - (74,245)  (74,245) - (74,245)
2018 interim dividend 018FRERE
paid in cash PYESA = = = - = - (33,866)  (33,866) - (33,866)
At 31 March 2018 R20185F3A318 130 436,765 668 24,582 (834) 287 3,528,370 3,989,968 1,886,836 5,876,804
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$’000
T¥HT T
Cash flows from operating activities REKLE RS RERE
Profit before taxation BR 156 Al A 468,868 409,854
Adjustments for: P
Interest income A2 WA (41,311) (34,267)
Interest expenses B 12,209 14,636
Fair value changes of investment KREMEAABEZES
properties (53,100) 16,000
Depreciation of property, plant and M ERNEBEITE
equipment 109,346 126,831
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, PEMSE HEREEZ
plant and equipment E1E (Ya) 151 (50)
Release of prepaid lease payments fERR AN & RIE 15,711 15,507
Operating cash flows before EEE LEEABEA 2
movements in working capital EEMEME 511,874 548,511
Decrease in inventories T,Ei?zﬂd\ (805) (618)
Decrease in trade and other receivables & 5 K H b g W 3k 2 i (18,105) (1,425)
Increase in trade and other payables /\%&Emfﬁ K2 32 0 15,036 20,480
Decrease in amounts due to fellow REZRZKERRIFIEZRD
subsidiaries (809) (831)
Cash generated from operations REREEB 2R 507,191 566,117
Macau Complementary Tax paid BEHORFIFTSHRN 3) -
Net cash from operating activities REREEE 2R EFE 507,188 566,117
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

<

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$’000
T T
Cash flows from investing activities KREREFHZEHERE
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits AV BER 1T IR X 1,038,708 39,467
Interest received B & 37,724 45,767
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HMBERERHEZ
plant and equipment Fir 18 5818 80 133
Placement of short-term bank deposits FARHBRITER (1,511,402) (3,258)
Acquisition of available-for-sale BEAHBEERE
investments (267,649) -
Acquisition of property, plant and BEYE HERRE
equipment (46,503) (23,998)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEEWE HELREZ
plant and equipment EffET® (11,625) (2,698)
Placement of pledged bank deposits BFABERRITER (5) (7,597)
Addition of prepaid lease payments ANE RN HEERIE - (5,720)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits EREEBRITER - 662,986
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (AR ) REREFE 2R & /F5HE (760,672) 705,082
Cash flows from financing activities KEMEGB HERE
Repayment of bank borrowing BERITEE (469,800) (37,800)
Dividends paid 2k AR 2 (108,111) (100,296)
Interest paid 2RFE (15,900) (14,144)
Repayments to non-controlling interests B & — B AR 2
of a subsidiary R E R B (13,200) (11,200)
Cash used in financing activities KRB EssRe (607,011) (163,440)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash BRE&EMREEEMZ
equivalents OB ) B %R (860,495) 1,107,759
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning Z2#HHVzRE LA EEY
of the reporting period 3,959,005 2,851,246
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the Z2®RHFZRELBEESEEY
reporting period, representing bank BIRTTAASR R ®
balances and cash 3,098,510 3,959,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

General

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the ‘“Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company’s immediate holding company is
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The
intermediate holding company of the Company is Emperor
International Holdings Limited (‘Emperor International”),
a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability,
the shares of which are also listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of
the Company is Albert Yeung Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
which is in turn held by STC International Limited, being the
trustee of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”),
the settlor and founder of which is Dr. Yeung Sau Shing,
Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information and Key Dates”
section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38.

— % & B
BEIREBEBRAR([RAR]) A —
BEAREFMR L EREHRAR]
EHBRODEBEBERZFAABMR AR ([H
R ERET - ARR 2 HEEERAT
REEREHEERBR AR (REET
ML 2 BR AT - ARRZEEER
NAREEEE (BER)BRAR ([RE
BIBR ] RBEREIMKLZBRAR)
ZA A2 AR TRR B AZ P E MR LTI o AR
DA Z BRI D B RS A E SRR
BRARI(REBEXHSFMALZ
BRAR]) - #ZARIHThe Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust ([AY Trust]) Z {57
ASTC International Limited# % » AY Trust
ZEFTAKRBIZABGZHEL ([HBE
T]) o ARNFEMFERE R EEE FEME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments require an
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from
those financial assets were, or future cash flows will be,
included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and
(v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 33. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 33, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments'’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

2.

VEE JH 5B 48 J% 2845 5T A 9% B4 55 ¥R
’(&;f)ﬁ'] (7 o B 5 e o e 10 )

A8 1L 095 A 2 280 2 o 38 M A 08 T A

¥ 55 i i o

AEE I EIE R EMIA T ERMERARE
M2 FIE MR ERT BBV RS %R :

BIERTERE %R
Elebr

BEBIIERE 2R
El

BB R AER
1655

BRI TE IR %R
F175

&% (BERTBRE
BRELZET)
— R REE20

5% (BEBRFBRE
RELZEY)
—RREZE23

BRI TEIRA %R
Eviiwa I

BB HREER
4R ERT

MG mEER
FOWZIERT

BB EmEER
F10RREBS
HERI 285 2 1B 7T

ERMIA

EPRHRAR
BT

HEe

RERA A

INEEZZ 5 BT

HE'

FrigBisH
TR

ft

k3|

jag
=

HTXL

R HH)
KErE!

a

5

BEBUHRS
HERIEA5% [R IR
AR —HER
BRMBRE
HERIFIR
(SR TA]

EERamEL
REEFIIE

REEEER S
NRIRAEDRR
ANEEHER
B

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited % £ {4k A B A v 65

Annual Report 2017/2018 4Ei



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 — 2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property'’

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
All other financial assets are measured at their fair value
at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of
the Company anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9:

2.

W FH W 394 % A8 1 T A 8 B 5
ng}ﬁu (7 o B 5 e o e 10 )

A i S5 ek ME N SR 0%% [ ik T AL |
(&)
EAKEE BBV HRE ER LR
ZEBRE:

s EBABYBHRESERNFESIRBEAN
FrEE R B E LR AREH
RAKAEEFE-AEMS B
HAREE R ERE 2 EKHRAT
B U BB EA S M H AR EE
AeZMENFZEHREREZE
BIRE  —MRERZ e HRER
RHZ# ST 8 - B M ARERA K9
RenElESRHEEZEHRA
THANRERMEER DIRRSHE
EHBELZ RS REMAR BN
ERAREEAG ZFEMNEHTA
—RILFEBEMEmMW a2 A EE
([BRHEMEZERFE 2 DAAEE]) A
E-MBEEMEREEGNERKRES
MR A EERT E - I RIEE
BB IMEERFESR  BEAELH
AIREEE REA 2R 25
BIRE GHHERE) nnBEcHER
2E) ERBWRA—MRINESER -

s NERMEEREMS BEESIE
AIZE3957IA MRE HAEEEEER
TR BEVHRE R FRAR
EREHEEEREATE - BHE
EEBEEARTERN S 2RA S
ABHEEBERLBEAXERNBER
iRz 2% URMEERRBNF
ERAR 2 BB 0 F 2 BABR
BEEEEH I RAEEEE

RIEAREER2018F3A3IB 22/ TR
KREBREEBER  AARESTARVIGE
REEMBEREENESRGELIANE

B/ 488 -
e

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited % £ {4k A B A v 67

Annual Report 2017/2018 4Ei



68

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Classification and measurement:

e Listed debt instruments classified as available-for-sale
(“AFS”) investments carried at fair value as disclosed in
note 19: these are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the listed debt instruments in
the open market, and the contractual terms give rise to
cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
Accordingly, the listed debt instruments will continue
to be subsequently measured at FVTOCI upon the
application of HKFRS 9, and the fair value gains or
losses accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve will continue to be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss when the listed debt instruments are
derecognised; and

e All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS
9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to
be recognised by Group as at 1 April 2018 would have no
significant change as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on trade and other receivables and
deposits with financial institutions. No further impairment
recognised under expected credit loss model would adjust
the opening retained profits at 1 April 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$4,360,000 as disclosed
in note 35. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements may meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$820,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of HK$7,586,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are
considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of other new and revised HKFRSs will not have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the
‘CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and AFS investments which are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction priced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Llevel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not longer than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acaquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on pro-rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of cash-
generating unit in which the Group monitors goodwill).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
value. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating lease to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties and
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or deemed cost
upon transfer from investment properties, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
deemed cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Inventories

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: AFS financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, or (b) held-to-maturity investments
or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL").

Debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS debt instruments relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, and changes
in foreign exchange rates, if applicable are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposit, short-term
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on the receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS debt instruments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, amounts due to non-
controlling interests of a subsidiary and bank borrowing)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue arising from services provided to a gaming
operator in Macau under service arrangements for gaming
operations in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine
hall is recognised when the provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation services are rendered and the
Group is entitled to receive its service income according
to the relevant operating performance from the gaming
operator.

Revenue from hotel accommodation is recognised upon the
provision of the accommodation services. Revenue from
food and beverage sales and other ancillary services are
recognised upon the provision of goods and services.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Service income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as
to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgment applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties situated in Macau with carrying
amount of HK$679,300,000 as at 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$626,200,000) are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of such investment properties are
recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
has recognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$86,560,000
(2017: HK$81,296,000) on changes in fair value of
investment properties subject to Macau Complementary
Tax, on the assumption that these investment properties will
be recovered through use as at 31 March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key Sources
of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, which may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties of HK$679,300,000
as at 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$626,200,000) was
based on a valuation on these properties conducted by
an independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
significant unobservable inputs and assumptions of market
conditions, including comparable market transactions with
adjustments to reflect different locations or conditions.
Changes to the assumptions would result in changes in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in profit or loss.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform the valuation of
the Group’s investment properties. At the end of each
reporting period, the designated team works closely with
the independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are
not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that
include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in
the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the board of directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

<

Critical Accounting Judgment and Key Sources 4. 2 € it JI B S il 5t 4 e 5
of Estimation Uncertainty (continued) ZERERWE (Z)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 1 5 A e M2 AR (F)
Recoverability of trade receivables from individual gaming W [ 1 5 17 2 5 2 B 45 JE W sk 2 T i
patrons /i3
The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an REERBECERNEYEF 2B S RN
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables from K2 AR MR E D RER B o & HIRAE
individual gaming patrons. Allowances are made on trade M ZEF IR A &R e RO
receivables from individual gaming patrons whenever there W HZEEREYERP 28 5 RKRIE
is any objective evidence that the balances may not be HEE NETEEH EREBERER A%
collectible. In determining whether an allowance for doubtful ] Z B R AR S S U B 2 R BRI - LR
debts is required, the Group takes into consideration the Al REE - EEEBEEBELRFE
ageing status and the likelihood of collection. Following LA R F b I B2 AT BE 1 o fE BE TS K AT RE LR
the identification of doubtful debts, the credit team Bl 2 ERIER TP 2 & 5 UG EL R R
discusses with the relevant gaming patrons and assess the BiE - wIE B R ERNEYE P 2 B 51
recoverability. Specific allowance is only made for trade Wk 2 AT RE 1 B RS ST A AT R AREZE
receivables from individual gaming patrons that are unlikely BN ZMF RSB IR B ER ISR
to be collected. Where the expectation on the recoverability P ZE SRV M REEE 2 REE -
of the trade receivables from individual gaming patrons
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amounts of trade receivables from
individual gaming patrons and allowance for doubtful debts
in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
The carrying amount of trade receivables from individual 20185 3A31 B HREREF 2 E S
gaming patrons as at 31 March 2018 is HK$40,170,000 (net JEE L 3% & B TE {8 4340,170,0007% 7T (#0
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$18,009,000) (2017: B R BR 7 #518,009,00058 7T) (20174 :
HK$43,299,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of 43,299,000/ 7T ($1 R BR#E4£531,009,000
HK$31,009,000)). BIT) ) °
Revenue 5. WA
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBZWADHAT :
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$’000
T T
Service income from gaming operation  FISTB R ¥ 2 RE U A
in mass market hall 723,188 777,471
Service income from gaming operation & & EEE Y ¥ 2 RS WA
in VIP room 490,864 546,366
Service income from gaming operation AT HEEE ¥ ¥ 2 R WA
in slot machine hall 39,265 38,207
Hotel room income BIEE R WA 100,053 99,213
Food and beverage sales BERHE 112,733 119,423
Rental income from KEMEZHESWA
investment properties 22,148 23,706
Others ) 10,100 8,794
1,498,351 1,613,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Segment Information

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM"). The Executive Directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources.

For gaming operation, the Executive Directors regularly
analyse gaming revenue in terms of service income
from mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall.
No operating results or discrete financial information is
presented to the Executive Directors in relation to the above
analysis. The Executive Directors review the revenues and
operating results of gaming operation as a whole and have
identified the operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 as gaming operation and hotel operation.

The segment information reported externally is analysed
on the basis of their types of services supplied by the
Group’s operating divisions which is consistent with the
internal information that is regularly reviewed by the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the
Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise
the Group around different services provided by the Group.
The principal activities of the operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

Mass market hall, VIP room and
slot machine hall operations
and provision of gaming-related
marketing and public relation
services in the casino of the
Grand Emperor Hotel in Macau

Gaming operation -

Hotel operation in the Grand
Emperor Hotel and the Inn
Hotel Macau including property
investment income from
investment properties in these
hotels in Macau

Hotel operation -

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 2454405 A PR A ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. HHEER (£)
The Executive Directors assess the performance of MITESRMBRANE WIE & L
individual operating and reportable segments based HEEEEMNENEBLRREMELR
on a measure of adjusted earnings before interest, tax, NEBEZEFIZCRABRN ([KREAR
depreciation and amortisation, exchange loss at corporate EBITDAJ)X.:HSTI%‘JZ‘«M&T Wwoa
level and fair value changes of investment properties (the 2R o

“Adjusted EBITDA").

Inter-segment revenue is charged at a price mutually DR ARE S &R 2 BRIE
agreed by both parties.

Information regarding the above segments is reported B O E BRI 2®mT
below:
Segment revenue and results Vg L NUE 3
For the year ended 31 March 2018 # E201843H31H I &
Gaming Hotel
operation operation Total ~ Elimination Consolidated
MREE  WEEE &t Ha e

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000
T T T T T

SEGMENT REVENUE AERA
External revenue HHMEA 1,253,317 245,034 1,498,351 - 1,498,351
Inter-segment revenue HEERA - 1,621 1,621 (1,621) -
Total A 1,253,317 246,655 1,499,972 (1,621) 1,498,351
Segment result based EREFEBEBITDAZ

on the Adjusted EBITDA oL ET 448,751 63,950 512,701 512,701
Bank interest income RITFBHA 38,471
Interest income from AFS investments AJ#tHERE 2 Fl BUA 2,840
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1%  MERRE2TE

equipment (109,346)
Exchange loss at corporate level TEEEMELER (801)
Release of prepaid lease payments R TEHFAEFHIE (15,711)
Fair value changes of investment BRENELDAEBEZE

properties 53,100
Finance costs HKER (12,386)

Profit before taxation B3 T A A 468,868
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. HHEER ()
Segment revenue and results (continued) g LONES SC- P,
For the year ended 31 March 2017 # F20174E3H 31 H IFFJE
Gaming Hotel
operation operation Total ~ Elimination Consolidated
% 5 i 7 GEil 8 A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
SEGMENT REVENUE E1ON
External revenue EIMA 1,362,044 251,136 1,613,180 - 1,613,180
Inter-segment revenue SEERA - 2,221 2,221 (2,221) -
Total A 1,362,044 253,357 1,615,401 (2,221) 1,613,180
Segment result based HNEHEEEBITDAZ
on the Adjusted EBITDA GEEY 495,307 69,803 565,110 565,110
Bank interest income H|ITHBBA 34,267
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% #ERREZTE
equipment (126,831)
Exchange loss at corporate level TEEENELSE (16,522)
Release of prepaid lease payments R TE(FFAEFHIE (15,507)
Fair value changes of investment RENERNEBEZED
properties (16,000)
Finance costs BKER (14,663)
Profit before taxation BB AR FI 409,854

92

No analysis of the Group’'s assets and liabilities by
operating and reportable segments is disclosed as it is not
regularly provided to the Executive Directors for review.

Other than the segment information disclosed in above,
there was no other information reviewed by the CODM for
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

Geographical information
The Group’s revenue was derived principally in Macau.

The non-current assets, other than AFS investments, are all
located in Macau.

Information about major customer

During the year, revenue derived from one (2017: one)
customer which contributed over 10% of the Group’s
revenue amounted to HK$1,256,266,000 (2017:
HK$1,365,716,000). The revenue related to the gaming
operation and the hotel operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

7. Other Losses 7. H i g5 18
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$"000
T#L T
Exchange loss bE 3 E5 18 801 16,522
Loss arising from misappropriation of MAESEEZERE
funds (note) (Hat) - 12,900
801 29,422
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group was MsE: # Z2017F3A31B L F/E KNEEE
aware that an ex-senior casino cashier of a subsidiary of the AR R RPN B AR 2 — B
Company in Macau had embezzled some of the chips on hand EARESHMEBAAEERE TER
(“Misappropriation of Funds”) of the Group. The matter was ([BAEL]) - ZEHEMRMRNEE
reported to The Inspectorate of Macao Judiciary Police and the ex- REWmE BB aMESEMER
senior casino cashier was arrested for criminal investigation. The WERBAEIHNERAS - BHEEREA
court judgement was obtained and the person had pleaded guilty KERB MZza ATEEREAERH
and was sentenced to imprisonment. N
The loss arising from the Misappropriation of Funds amounted MR ZAn = RESHNERE 2 HIE
to HK$12,900,000 net of HK$100,000 returned by the ex-senior 100,000/8 7T EREEMRESMEEZ
casino cashier, which was charged to the consolidated statement 518 512,900,000/ 7T ' W E R £ —F
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the prior year. EiHReEaREMEERERAR-
Chips on hand under note 18 “Trade and other receivables” were MizE1s [ES MEMERRI BT ZE
also adjusted downward by the same amount to reflect such loss BIRE M T HAZRER S FEARRZFE
for that year. Z e .
8. Finance Costs 8. MEEN
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$"000
T#L T#T
Interest on bank borrowing RITEEFE 12,209 14,636
Bank charges RITFEE 177 27
12,386 14,663
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BBl i A
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
T#L T
Profit before taxation has been arrived  B& %1 Bl A 2 F1BR
at after charging:
Staff costs, including directors’ BINA BIEESEME
emoluments 435,739 429,692
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iE ¥k 4& F| 5t 21 7% 6,049 5,493
Total staff costs ®E TR 441,788 435,185
Auditor’'s remuneration B RN & 3,750 3,550
Commission expenses in gaming BEEB2HA2ER
operation (included in selling and (FTASHE kMG E
marketing expenses) ERA) 259,943 310,839
Cost of inventories recognised BRRAXZFERAR
as an expense 38,620 41,405
Depreciation of property, Y BRNREZTE
plant and equipment 109,346 126,831
Loss on disposal of property, HEME HBENREZERE
plant and equipment 151 -
Release of prepaid lease payments % bR 7R HH & IR 15,711 15,507
and after crediting: REFTA:
Bank interest income RITH B UA 38,471 34,267
Interest income from AFS investments  AJft H &K E 2 F| B WA 2,840 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME e kB ke
plant and equipment - 50
Gross rental income from investment WEMEZHSWAETE
properties 22,148 23,706
Less: Direct operating expenses R LABREXAE & WA 8
incurred for investment properties REMEMESXNERE
that generated rental income KEBH (661) (516)
21,487 23,190
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’ 10. #F ¥ - RETHA B K08 B %

Emoluments
(a) Directors” and chief executives’ emoluments (@) EFLEEITHABFH M

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the EEREZITHRABRAFE 2B

year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules Gias7 il Mmaibs - UPSENGIL - STE 3

and CO, is as follows: T

Non-
executive
director Executive Directors Independent non-executive directors
FUnES WS BukanEs
Ms. Fan Ms. Kwan Ms. Chan
Ms. Luk Siu Mr. Wong  Man Seung, Mr.Yu  ShinLuen,  Ms. Lai Ka Wiling,
Man, Semon Chi Fai Vanessa King Tin Susanna  Fung, May Yvonne Total
BABLE  EEEEE  UEELE ARREE BERLL RRELL EERLL At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
SR L T T Tl L Tl T
(note (@)~ (note (a))
(Wite)  (Wita)

2018 20185

Fees s - 150 150 180 180 180 - 840

Other emoluments Eobie

Salaries and other benefits HeREMET _ - - - _ - - -

Performance related incentive BERRHNN RS

payment (nofe (b)) (M) _ _ _ _ - - - -

Total emoluments FHam _ 150 150 180 180 180 _ 840

2017 20175

Fees we - 150 150 180 180 113 68 841

Other emoluments AnBie

Salaries and other benefits e REMEN - - - - - - - -

Performance related incentive ARFHBNRE

payment (nofe (b)) (B3 (b)) - - - - - - - -

Total emoluments Ghas - 150 150 180 180 13 68 841

Notes: Bt -

(a) Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May was appointed as independent non- (a) BKRBEZLHN2016F8A16HEZL
executive director of the Company on 16 August 2016 and Ms. BARNRBMIERNTES BERER
Chan Wiling, Yvonne retired as independent non-executive 2+ R201668 A 16 HIRF AR A&
director of the Company on 16 August 2016. SIHEBITES

(b) The performance related incentive payment is determined with (b) REAEBAABRS H2EBLEEER
reference to the operating results and individual performance. EARIFETE

The chief executives of the Company are also the RNARZ FEITHRA BRI IRHIT

Executive Directors and the emoluments disclosed B LMEBRIFNEERSER

above include those services rendered by them as chief FETHRABFRE RS-

executives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and Employees’

96

Emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
(continued)

No emolument was recognised or paid by the Group
to the directors as compensation for loss of office and
inducement to join for both years. No director had
waived any emoluments during both years.

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

(b)

Employees” emoluments
The five highest paid individuals did not include any

director of the Company for both years. The total
emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for both

10. ;ﬁﬁ) EEATBA B KR BB M
() EHEREBITBAHGM (&)

AEENMEFERERRRN T
B R2ERRERALME RS AR
SEZ2FHMW- RREFEAR BES
EMEEMHE -

AEFRBITESEME X BIERRKS
FLUEIEAR R MK E SRR
152 - A LR IEITE S M5
VIFRTEENME T BIEREREE
EARREFRH 2 RFFH IR -

D B 55t I

RREFERN EE&=HM2 AL
PEREARAEANES ZRERS
FENA TR B R 2 FrEisaEa Rl an

(b)

years were as follows: T:
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$000
T¥#oo Tt
Salaries and other benefits e kEMEF 11,757 11,403
Performance related bonuses B 5% 30 B S Y TE AL 5,096 4,727

Retirement benefit scheme NP (R

contributions 588 798
17,441 16,928

Number of individuals

AN

2018 2017

Emoluments of the employees were Lili{Eg 8 2 FH BN F A & E :
within the following bands:

HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/% 7T £2,500,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7t 23,500,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/% 7T £4,500,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001% 7T £5,000,000/% 7T 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

10. Directors’, Chief Executives” and Employees’
Emoluments (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued)

()

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the plans are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of the independent
trustees. The Group and each employee make
mandatory contributions of 5% of relevant payroll costs
with monthly cap of HK$1,500 to the scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees of a
subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1 September
2014. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under control of
independent trustees. The retirement scheme cost
recognised in profit or loss represents contributions
payable to funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme. Where there are employees of the
Group who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the Macau government. The
Group is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions were HK$6,049,000 (net of forfeited
contributions of HK$458,000) (2017: HK$5,493,000 (net
of forfeited contributions of HK$903,000)).

10. %‘i FEEITHA B KR B B

(b) BEHM (&)

(c)

HE20184F N2017F3A31H ILF
B AfEETERNRERESHFHZ
AT XA ERE A DA A & B =5
DR S5 B B 2 % B gl ok R B 4

=
g °

1B P A EH S

AEERETAREREEREEE
Woab R E A B AT B2 BE
BB ERARGZESRE WK
AEBZEENFH AEEEGZE
BIR AR 2 A B5%[A AT BIE L
5R FIE S _ERRAE A 1,500/ 7T °

AEEB20145F9 1R R A KR
Z—FERFIMBARNMAE A ERE
BEMERMFRKE -ZFHEIZ
BERBUERAZEFZESRKEA

W AR 2 BE D - N IBas A FE
B RIRFT B A tE AR B B4R
RIFTETLL R BRI R S P2 5K - fi
A& R ENHFEREBRR L
2 AEEEMHRARE R MR
SERIEHADR

AEBRFIME AR 2 & E T AR
BUTEIR 2 BIREIRR KB EI 2
KB AEBEREEHFM 2 XEE
7 LERIRZR KRR FIEH BI 30 - MEAR S
BEOR ARG BB AR 2 BTE
RN IRZAT & 2 B ETTHR

RAFEE RINEFFTEIHRESE
756,049,0007% 7T (F1 5 B )8 Y4t 51
458,000 7T) (20174F : 5,493,000
787t (B B8 W4 52903,000%
JT) ) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

<

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Taxation Credit

11. i JE o] 43

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L T

Macau Complementary Tax SEPIFS AR
— current tax — REATIE (50,082) (53,942)
— underprovision in prior years —-BAEFERETR (714) (4)
— reversal of tax provision in prior years — % [038 7 FZ 2 B 18 B 96,178 70,974
45,382 17,028

Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNEH

- current tax — AR EATRIE (62) -
Deferred taxation (note 26) EERIE (H5t26) (6,458) 1,768
38,862 18,796

The Macau Complementary Tax (“CT") is calculated at the
applicable rate of 12% of the estimated assessable profits
for both years.

Pursuant to the CT law, the CT assessment on the estimated
assessable profit in a year of assessment will lapse in
five consecutive years after that year of assessment.
At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company reassessed the adequacy of the CT provision
and determined to reverse part of the Group’s relevant CT
provision of HK$96,178,000 for the 2012 year of assessment
(2017: HK$70,974,000 for the 2011 year of assessment)
accordingly.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the current year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made in the
consolidated financial statements for the prior year as the
assessable profit in that year was wholly absorbed by tax
losses brought forward in previous years.

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the

profit before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 2454405 A PR A ]

Annual Report 2017/2018 4E#i

REIFS T (1R8] ) JimiEsE
AT AR A Z BRI R12%1 H

RIBH TR A Rl FE A B ER
TR A 2 R TR SR X T I S e st
BEAFRRIW -NERPKR  NARES
MEAMBE TR BEFELFE I
P IR T B O] S0 AN R B R 201 25 FE R 4F
[E 2 1BRa R e i B 96,178,000/ 7T (2017
& 2011 F TR FE70,974,0008 7T ) ©

BEREFUSB IR AREE T ERTURF 2
16.5%x1 &

AR E—FEZERRNGENENBEFE
R AR IR 1R P A SR L - X5
EirE M RA P L EIEL T B NS
e

AREEHRIAR B RS Ea L EMEE
Wgs 3R 2 BR A AR A SRR AT -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

11. Taxation Credit (continued) 11. BEIH I 8 (42)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
TFW#oT T
Profit before taxation B A5 A1 5 A 468,868 409,854
Tax charge at the Macau Complementary B FIFT15 % 7o i fi E12%
Tax rate of 12% FAEZHRIEX 56,264 49,182
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RBMBmME TAIHBASZ 2
for tax purpose MBTE 9,641 11,909
Tax effect of income not taxable MBS BERMBAZ
for tax purpose mBEE (11,518) (11,471)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RERMEBEE - HMETE 2,225 2,576
Underprovision in prior years BAFEREBETR 714 4
Effect of reversal of tax provision BOBTFEMEREBE 2 ZE
in prior years (96,178) (70,974)
Utilisation of tax losses previously AL AERHIBEE
not recognised (21) (15)
Others HAh 1 (7)
Taxation credit for the year 5 JZ F1 18 O] B (38,862) (18,796)
12. Dividends 12. B% B
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
TH#oT R

Dividends recognised as distribution FEANBRRBDIKZKE
during the year:

Final dividend paid in respect of 2017: B k2017F 2 RHAK 8.
HK$0.057 per share (2017: HK$0.052 FHR0.0578 7 (20174
per share in respect of 2016) 2016 2 AR & ¢
& §0.052787T) 74,245 67,732

Interim dividend paid in respect of 2018: B k20184 2 fF HAf% & -
HK$0.026 per share (2017: HK$0.025 F[%0.0267 7T (20174 -

per share in respect of 2017) 2017 2R EAR B
FH%0.025/% 7T ) 33,866 32,564
108,111 100,296
The board of directors proposed the payment of a final BEeEBRMNEZE2018F3A31A LF
dividend of HK$0.057 per share (2017: HK$0.057 per B2 REAIR B BRR0.057ETT (20176 : &
share) for the year ended 31 March 2018 which is subject AR0.0577 7T ) - AT AR IR R FEE
to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the REBEERNS EHEFAIER

forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

13. H5: & A
AR REE AE(ESRREA R THIREA

13. Earnings per Share
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable

to owners of the Company is based on the following data: TEUREE -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#L T
Earnings 2R
Earnings (profit for the year attributable BEREREFIM S 2 87
to owners of the Company) for the (RARIHEEANBLEE
purpose of basic earnings per share a8 ) 393,574 346,490
2018 2017

Number of shares

B0 BB
AREBREARNME 2
BT EEBINEF

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the purpose of

basic earnings per share 1,302,545,983 1,302,545,983

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the Company AR R RN MIEF E SR EEEES
does not have any dilutive potential ordinary share for both Rz EER - TR SR AT
years.

14. EW ¥

14. Investment Properties

100

HK$'000
T T
FAIR VALUE NREE
At 1 April 2016 720164418 664,200
Transfer from prepaid lease payments and EREREMNAEREURYE -
property, plant and equipment (note) Me2s MR (Hat) 31,800
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EE Y EBRNEE
(note 15) (Ktit15) (53,800)
Decrease in fair value NABEZRD (16,000)
At 31 March 2017 7201743 A31H 626,200
Increase in fair value NAEEZEM 53,100
At 31 March 2018 72018438318 679,300
Note: The amount included a revaluation surplus of HK$30,500,000 Wi ZeBREEBRENEERBUARD

upon transfer of prepaid lease payments and property, plant and
equipment to investment properties which was credited to property
revaluation reserve and non-controlling interests.

The investment properties represent completed investment

properties situated in Macau.

¥ MELNEBEREVESEECZSE
fi 22 £230,500,000/8 7T ;2 BB E 5T A

MEEGFERIFERERAN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

14. Investment Properties (continued)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2018 and 31 March 2017 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers not connected to the Group,
in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards (2017)
issued by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, all investment
properties were held for rental under operating leases. The
investment properties are held within a business model
of the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use. There
has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year. The valuation was arrived at with reference to
market evidence of recent transaction prices for similar
properties with adjustments to reflect different locations and
conditions.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the

14. BHEWE (&)

REB 2B Y HEM2018F3A31H &
20173 A3 B 2 AR EBETIIRE [ERE
BIEHEI T AR AR (BAAREETERE
B ABEREEMEMEMT) NZEB
HR BB SMEBeEh 2 B8 S/ME
SHEER (201746 0R) #EITHEMET ©

A20185FE3A31H M201743A31H  Fr A
KEYEHYRELEHERBELEA
BoZEREYEHBANBEMIES AL
BN HREREMEMSBAROLE
M AEEE R ASERERNFR -
REFTYEZ AAEBER ZEWE &
B kREREAHERARGR ANFEME

Z 53X 5 (78 BRI BL A AR AN B b [ % 16
HEL AR MEEE °

TRIBENAEEZSREMENAAE
B (LERATRANGERI REASER)
WER URBEA R BEFENEAK
B EREEHARBETELETHE
WARBESR (B1IREEIMR)

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group
in the consolidated

Sensitivity /
relationship of

statement of Valuation unobservable inputs
financial position Fair value techniques and Significant to fair value
AEER GG A MBEMRIE  Fair value hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs R /A B A\ R
FeF7 1Y B2 5% ARME AR A DA A Bk EEYIUE VL NS A SR A T 4R

HK$'000

AR
Commercial properties in 679,300 Level 3 Direct comparison method with  Market unit rate, mainly taking  The higher the market unit rate

Macau (2017: 626,200) R market unit rate as the key into account the location, used, the higher the fair value

iISEAREITSESJES (20174 : 626,200) input frontage and size, between of the investment properties,

Nz EEEAMREAMER
BRERE

and vice versa
ERANTSEBNR ZEREN
ENRABEEKN R2TA

the comparables, which
ranged from HK$7,000
to HK$30,000 (2017:
HK$6,000 to HK$28,000)
per square foot
TEFRALENE ZBHM
E REGHREREOTS
EE N FRETHR7,000
7 7L £30,000% 7t (2017
% 6,000/ 7T £28,0007%5
)

WAFE - FBIFEAE MBI mE L -

There were no transfers between Level 3 and other Levels
during the year.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited % £ {4k A B A v 101
Annual Report 2017/2018 ¥




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. P2 ~ W45 Jewk fli
Furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and
Hotel improvements equipment Motor
properties Buildings Mm% &M Machinery vehicles Others Total
s i £ kB RERG e A ) At

HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
T Tl T T Tz T T Tl

COST OR DEEMED COST ~ HiAZBRA

At 1 April 2016 R2016F4F 18 1,260,862 90,767 335,041 207,252 265,116 9,493 3,851 2,172,382
Additions b - - 2,742 17,194 5,398 2,017 111 27,462
Transfer from investment BRERENE

properties (note 14) (Hiit14) 53,800 - - - - - - 53,800
Transfer to investment HERERENE

properties (1,146) - - - - - - (1,146)
Disposals e - - - (3,079) (44) (858) - (3,981)
At 31 March 2017 M201743A31A 1,313,516 90,767 337,783 221,367 270,470 10,652 3,962 2,248,517
Additions b - - 25,531 15,568 5,135 1,436 119 47789
Disposals HE - - - (12,477) (2,469) (1,181) - (16,127)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%3A31A 1,313,516 90,767 363,314 224,458 273,136 10,907 4,081 2,280,179
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2016 201654418 229,539 17,021 219,112 146 504 176,369 7,562 2,018 798,125
Provided for the year FENRE 35,270 2,269 40,757 24,561 22,278 1,029 667 126,831
Transfer to investment BRERENE

properties (294) - - - - - - (294)
Eliminated on disposals HEREHY - - - (3,010) (30) (858) - (3,898)
At 31 March 2017 R201743A31A 264,515 19,290 259,869 168,055 198,617 7733 2,685 920,764
Provided for the year EENEE 35,270 2,269 29,767 21,754 18,656 1,070 560 109,346
Eliminated on disposals HERHY - - - (12,440) (2,275) (1,181) - (15,896)
At 31 March 2018 M2018%F3A31A 299,785 21,559 289,636 177,369 214,998 7622 3,245 1,014,214
CARRYING VALUE REE
ALST March 2018 R218F3A31H 1,013,731 69,208 73,678 47,089 58,138 3,285 836 1,265,965
At 31 March 2017 R20174£3A31A 1,049,001 71477 77914 53,312 71853 2919 1277 1,327,753

(1)) Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 2454405 A PR A ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 15. 3~ 2% Bkt (42)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are i e RREER AEREE
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates BATFERTANE
per annum:
Hotel properties and Over the estimated useful lives BIEMHERETFT (T Al A FA405F
buildings of 40 years or the unexpired BB EZ RKEWR
terms of the relevant lease, FH(ABREE
whichever is shorter RYE)
Leasehold improvements 10 - 20% HEWEEE  10—20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10 - 20% B EBER 10—20%
equipment Bl
Machinery 10 - 20% s 10—20%
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
Others 20% Hth 20%
The hotel properties and buildings are located in Macau. As B JE Y RAEF AL FSERPT o R i K
the lease payments for land and building elements, other BT 2 BEIE (M 16FTHEEIN)
than those included in note 16, cannot be allocated reliably, TREAISE O B IERESELARE
the entire lease is classified as a finance lease and includes MEWFABFZRAEE

in the carrying value of the buildings.

16. Prepaid Lease Payments 16. ¥ A1 AL 3K H
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFw#oT T#c
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At beginning of the reporting period R 2] 496,314 506,549
Addition AN - 5,720
Transfer to investment properties E%Zﬁ&ﬁ%% = (448)
Released for the year FE AR (15,711) (15,507)
At end of the reporting period RERIAR 480,603 496,314
Analysed for reporting purposes MEFRME Z22THAT:
as follows:
Non-current FEM B 464,900 480,603
Current mE 15,703 15,711
480,603 496,314
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise of leasehold AEE 2 BNEERBBREMARIT 2
land in Macau. St
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Goodwill

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounting to HK$110,960,000 (2017: HK$110,960,000) had
been allocated to the cash-generating unit relating to the
Group’s gaming operation.

During the year, the Group performed an impairment review
for goodwill of the Group’s gaming operation based on
cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and after the fifth year,
the projections are extrapolated using a constant growth
rate of 3% (2017: 3%) per annum for subsequent years.
The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit of
the gaming operation is determined from value in use
calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to revenue and direct costs
during the year. The forecast is discounted using a discount
rate of 16% (2017: 17%). The discount rate was determined
with reference to weighted average cost of capital of
similar companies in the industry and adjusted for specific
risks associated with the Group’'s gaming operation. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average industry
growth forecasts. Expected changes to revenue and direct
costs are based on past practices and the management’s
expectations of future changes in the market. As the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is higher
than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, the
directors of the Company consider no impairment loss is
necessary for either year.

Trade and Other Receivables

17. /2

R2018F3A31H BEZEEEAE
110,960,000/ 7t (20174F : 110,960,0005%
T0) BB R AR EIERAC S XIS E
ZREELSMN-

RAFE  NEBBRERIOZAKRATF
PR EERMEZ R REEARESH
FRIRHEFETFI% (2017F:3% ) 2
BEGREETHEZEN BAEEE
TR ES 2 B EITRER 1L
EEBHeEEBMNZAIRE R
FREBEEMEE - AUGTEFERER
ZEBEBIIVEFEAZTEER EREK
MIEFTWRAREEKAZ BB/ %18
B3%16% (20174 1 17% ) Z T2 R F AHT
WP H2RERRBRR 2 INEF
HEARKAME T IR EBMBRLE
(B TRRBEITHAE BRER
MBBRBATHYER ZIERIEA - FBETIRA
MEZKAZ ELTMRIEATEN R ER
BEHMISERKRE L2 FEEHMSH - ARIR
CEEBEMZAINESESNREELSE
2 BREE AR EER AR EEF
EWENBERREBBEE-

18. ¥ 5y M 3 Al 1 Wk

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$’000

T#T T#T

Trade receivables B 5 WK 135,717 179,514
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts Mk REEBEHE (18,009) (31,009)
117,708 148,505

Chips on hand £15 151,712 121,245
Other receivables and prepayments H b e YR R FE A 3K 39,829 17,881
309,249 287,631
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

18. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

The Group normally allows credit periods of up to 60 days
to its trade customers, except for certain credit worthy
customers with long term relationship and stable repayment
patterns, where the credit periods are extended to a longer
period. An ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables
(net of allowance) based on the date of credit granted or
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out
below:

18.

B 5 B Al Wk ()
AEE-RETHESEFPREORZEF
B8R TAERIARLREENE
AHEBERFEF REZEEHAELT
RE-BRBRPHE -UTRAEAEERER
HIRERNEEE M BEAMENN 2 E
P WK (FIBR B 1R ) 2 BRiie D AfT -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$’000

T T#IT

0 - 30 days 0£30H 95,489 126,155
31 - 60 days 31&60H 4,776 3,951
61 - 90 days 61£290H 595 595
91 - 180 days 91&180H 2,504 3,293
Over 180 days 180H A £ 14,344 14,511
117,708 148,505

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

The carrying amount of trade receivables does not include
debtors which were past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. Included in the trade receivable balances are debtor
balances of HK$17,443,000 (2017: HK$18,399,000) that
would otherwise have been past due or impaired had the
terms not been renegotiated.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables from individual gaming patrons
with an aggregate balance of HK$18,009,000 (2017:
HK$31,009,000) since the management considered the
prolonged outstanding balances from individual customers
were in doubt. As at 31 March 2018, the trade receivables
from gaming patrons, net of an allowance for doubtful debts,
amounted to HK$40,170,000 (2017: HK$43,299,000). The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 255 4415k A P A #]

S RRPIFR AR A RIETT - W A EER
RYFERE IR -

EHRRAZEMERERBATER
RBREBBRASEEREREBERG 2
HIB-BHRWGHBRERKRGEE
17,443,000 7T (20174 : 18,399,000/%
70) N EFE R R 2 EFERE
B S R(E

REBERERBERNBEREFE Z @R
BRE 2 B 5 & W 348 #2 5818,009,00078
7T (20174F : 31,009,00058 7T.) » J5 A & 38
BRAEBENEFPZREBAEERBRES
Uy B TEE SRR - 7201843 A31H - R B 18
TRPZEBSEUGK (B RERER)
/540,170,000 7T (20174F : 43,299,000
T0) o AE BB EZEHRES A T

-
an °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

18. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 18. B 5 K Hfb EW 3% (&)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts R 45 s 52 B)
HK$’000
T
At 1 April 2016 R2016F4H1H 32,399
Write-off b€ (1,390)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3H31H 31,009
Write-off 1 38 (13,000)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3H31H 18,009
The Group’s management closely monitors the credit quality AEBEREFRYERERACEEE
of debtors and considers the debtors that are neither = URBHRFERIKREZSEBFA
past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality as ZER D EEFIA - P AL WA B R A
continuous partial repayments are received from these EREZBRFAERITEEE R
debtors.
19. Available-for-sale Investments 19. °[ fit ) B &
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
T#T T#T
AFS investments comprise debt AHEERERENUT
instruments: BEBELIA:
— listed in Singapore/Hong Kong/ RN EES
Cayman Islands with fixed MERS LM EEFHNE
interests at the rates ranging from 71 F4.000[F £6.000/F
4.000% to 6.000% per annum and K E|E B F20184F
maturity dates falling between 1 4H1H
April 2018 to F£2019%F3H31H
31 March 2019 160,109 -
— listed in Singapore with fixed —RET K £ BE FF X
interests at the rates ranging from 77 F5.000/F £5.750/2
5.000% to 5.750% per annum and KB EAH Y F20194F
maturity dates falling between 1 4H1H E2020F3H31H
April 2019 to
31 March 2020 45,971 -
— listed in Singapore/Hong Kong with —REFME S EA LT
fixed interests at the rates ranging & 7 F A E 0 F4.2502
from 4.250% to 8.375% per Z8.375FE REIHAN T
annum and maturity dates falling 2020F4 H1H E20214F
between 1 April 2020 to 3HA31H
31 March 2021 177,994 -
— listed in Hong Kong with fixed —REBLT BEFF=E
interest at the rate of 5.200% per £5.200/E & B A
annum and maturity date on 72021645108
10 April 2021 39,000 -
423,074 -
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

<

Available-for-sale Investments (continued) 19. W B E (£)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L T
Analysed for reporting purposes MEFRME Z22TBAT:
as follows:
Non-current k) 262,965 -
Current B 160,109 -
423,074 -
The amount is carried at fair value which is the quoted bid EASBNENRERMR 2 AAEE (B
price in active markets at the end of the reporting period. ERRTIHME) DIAR o
Included in AFS investments are the following amounts AHERERETIIZAEERERE Y
denominated in currency other than functional currency of MEEEB AN BT EN S5
the relevant group entities:
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$’000
T T
UsbD ETT 360,893 -
RMB AR 62,181 -
Pledged Bank Deposit/Short-term Bank 20. KT ERAT F kS R AT 77

Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

Pledged bank deposit represents a deposit of HK$334,000
(2017 HK$329,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the use
of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party to the
Group. The pledged bank deposit carries interest at a fixed
interest rate of 1.40% (2017: 1.25%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2018, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months carry interest at fixed
interest rates which range from 1.20% to 1.55% (2017: at
2.80%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less, and carry interests at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 3.30% (2017: 0.01% to 1.28%) per
annum.

Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances and cash is the following
amount denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

RMB AR

xR AR SE

BRI ERAEE T —MIETIEA
ER—ZEZFREAEEFARES
= 7 IR EY 77 78334,00078 7T (20174F
329,000/ 7T ) B RIRRITIEFIZE E &
FZ1 40/E (20174 - 1.25[E )5t 2

R201853H318  REIHAH A3ME A £
IR ERTT EROR B E FFE N T1 .20
%155 (20174 : 2.80/E )5t &

RITEREE SR EAEEZGZRE N
REIERH A3ME B sA R IZIBIT IS ER)
R F0.01E £3.30E (2017F : 0.01EZE
1.28[E )5t B 2 R1T1FE K-

SRR RITE  BHRITERMIRITA
SEIRG B NIIRIAEEEEER 25
BRI EETHAEN SRR

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt T
8,048 4,898
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

21. Trade and Other Payables 21. © 5 B 3 b JRE A sk
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
T#L T
Trade payables B S EMNR 14,997 17,108
Chips in custody and deposits from REEREP 2FEREFR
gaming patrons 56,878 39,396
Construction payables and accruals ERNIERERETER 11,386 12,798
Interest payable JE A F 2 - 3,691
Other payables and accruals HibEN R RETEA 83,184 89,405
Payable for acquisition of AFS WERTHEERE 2
investments JE 1t R IR 156,741 -
Accrued staff costs R B TR 38,114 32,228
Short-term advance EHREVER 18,000 18,000
379,300 212,626
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables based on UTRAEEREHRPARIREZAHRZ
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out 2B G REMNRZ RER DT
below:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
T#L T
0 — 30 days 0&30H 9,183 7,464
31 - 60 days 31260H 5,696 7,137
61 - 90 days 61£290H 15 2,255
91 - 180 days 91E180H 62 236
Over 180 days 180H M £ 41 16
14,997 17,108
Other payables and accruals mainly include accrued HEENRREGFEREIEBRRBELER
commission expenses in gaming operation, accrued ZEFHRASER Bt ERAKAMIZE -
expenses and other deposits.
22. Amounts due to Fellow Subsidiaries 22. R [l Z& B J& 2 W] 5k JH
The amounts are due to subsidiaries of Emperor BAFIERREEEEETHB AR 2R
International, which are unsecured, interest-free and B EER R RERERER

repayable on demand.

108 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 2454405 A PR A ]

Annual Report 2017/2018 4E#i



23.

24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Amounts due to Non-controlling Interests of a
Subsidiary

In accordance with the contractual terms of the
shareholders’ agreements, the interest-free amounts due to
the non-controlling interests of Luck United are to be repaid
at the discretion of the non-controlling interests from surplus
fund, which represents cash available in Luck United and
its subsidiaries, after paying all operating expenses and
payables, including but not limited to bank loans and third
party loans which are due for repayment together with the
accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the management
of Luck United determined that Luck United had adequate
available surplus fund for the repayment of all principal
amounts outstanding to its shareholders. Therefore, the
directors of the Company consider that the amounts due
to non-controlling interests of HK$107,600,000 (2017:
HK$120,800,000) are repayable at the discretion of the
non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017.

Bank Borrowing

23. % [ i G 2 ) - S 42 i it

X H

RIE IR R 7k 2 A KUK R Luck United
< IR R 2 o B FUR R IEIEIE i
TR AR E R (EE - BHrE S T8 Luck
United X B R TR B & &MY
FEMZ (BFEETRREIEERE ZRIT
ERNB=FEFGEREFFE) B2
FRIRE-

20183 A31H M201743A318 - Luck
United & 32 E 3R ALuck United¥ B & $97]
PRERECEBERERREZBEARAS-
it KRRREERE RIEERER K
TE107,600,0007% 7T (20174F : 120,800,000
7B 7T) Al R20189 3 H31H K201743 531
BREFEIEAR R 2 EKMERE -

24. SRITIE B

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
T#T T#c
Bank borrowing RITEE - 469,800
The bank borrowing is repayable as RITEEEAR TS
follows: FHAEE:
Within one year 1FE R - 43,200
Between one to two years 1226 RN — 48,600
Between two to five years 2E5F - 378,000
- 469,800
Less: Amount due within one year Wk :-RBBETATRMERN
shown under current liabilities FH 2 5RIE - (43,200)
Amount due after one year shown ERBEETATRMIFER
under non-current liabilities E|H 2 ;I8 - 426,600

The bank borrowing carries interest rate at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) + 2.35% per annum for
both years and is secured by certain assets of the Group
(see note 25(a) for details).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group had early
repaid the entire bank borrowing.

PREEE  RITEESIREBRITRE
FE ([BHBRITRIERE]) I2.35E 2 F
PGB WAREE A TEEEER (5F
& R IsE25(a)) ©

REZ2018F3A31IH IEFE  REEDIR
FEEZHRITES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

25. Pledge of Assets 25. B 7 K 1
(a) As at 31 March 2018, certain assets of the Group (a) F2018F3A318  AREEAE TEE
were pledged to banks to secure for banking facilities EEBTRIT ERRITERTAEER
granted by the banks to the Group. The carrying values ZHRITHMEZ KR R E2MAR &
of these assets at the end of the reporting period are as EEEMNREENT
follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
T#L T
Hotel properties B & W) % 1,013,731 1,049,001
Investment properties KEME 679,300 626,200
Prepaid lease payments FEEERE 480,603 496,314
Others (note) HAth (H#aE) 88,354 97,828

2,261,988 2,269,343

Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets Hiet: HmERAEEETEMEE (£
of the Group including principally property, plant and ZERBIEMZAINOTZE - R R
equipment (other than hotel properties), inventories, trade BB FE B REMEKZRKE
and other receivables and bank balances. WITHEER) 2 F NI -

(b) The Group also had a bank deposit of HK$334,000 (b) AEE IR IF334,0007 T (20174
(2017: HK$329,000) pledged to a bank to secure for the 329,000/ 7T ) #RITAF 3 T — EERTT -
use of ferry ticket equipment provided by a third party ER—RFE = IREAEEFRAME
to the Group. BB o

26. Deferred Taxation 26. ¥ %L i JH

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets UTARFERR T ERERIE (BE)

recognised and movements thereon during the year: BERERE

Accelerated tax  Revaluation of

depreciation properties Tax losses Total
I I 7 LES X oI e GEil
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
¥ ¥ ¥ T#x

(note)

(Hiiit)
At 1 April 2016 7201654818 (27,309) (80,664) 5,311 (102,662)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss REBHEFTA (1K) 1,609 3,028 (2,869) 1,768
Charge directly to equity ERRERNR - (3,660) - (3,660)
At 31 March 2017 201738318 (25,700) (81,296) 2,442 (104,554)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss RBHEFTA (k) 954 (5,264) (2,148) (6,458)
At 31 March 2018 R2018%E3A318 (24,746) (86,560) 294 (111,012)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

26. Deferred Taxation (continued)

Note: The Macau tax authority granted a concessionary deduction
to Grand Emperor Entertainment & Hotel (Macau) Limited
(“Grand Emperor Entertainment’), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau, to
claim deduction of depreciation allowance for certain of its
property, plant and equipment for tax purpose in an accelerated
pattern over a period which is half of the expected useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment and such a concession
ended on 31 December 2013. Out of the deferred tax liability
of HK$24,746,000 (2017: HK$25,700,000), an amount of
HK$22,348,000 (2017: HK$22,388,000) has been recognised in
respect of the accelerated tax depreciation of those property, plant
and equipment related to the concession.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset for the temporary differences
arising from the same group entity.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$146,120,000 (2017: HK$145,653,000) available for
offset against future profits. Deferred tax asset is recognised
in respect of HK$2,451,000 (2017: HK$20,351,000) of
such loss. No deferred tax asset is recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$143,669,000 (2017:
HK$125,302,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The Group’s unrecognised tax losses might
be carried forward indefinitely, except for an amount of
HK$83,355,000 (2017: HK$64,814,000) which will expire in
three years from the year of assessment.

27. Share Capital

26. WAEBLIE (2)

Biat: SRR ISP m AR D &) AR PI SR A
VZHEREENB AR K2R
JECRP AR AR ([HEBIREEER
MEF—HEEEERE BEET
Y - HES RRE 2 TERT AT A F B
FOUMRAERBIEMS 2 WE 1%
REBRBEWERTTE BRERER
2013F12A31HKR L - RIELERBE R &
24,746,000/ 7T (20174 : 25,700,000
BI)F EREESEBE I ME R

B 2 DN ER R TE T & HERR 22,348,000
78 7T (20174 @ 22,388,000/ 7T ) °

BEFRABBINAERT S RIERIEE
BN A A — ST A A
LT

R2018F3H31H  AEE B ABAFIAE
18146,120,0007% 7T (20174F : 145,653,000
BT AT T AR K m A o R % E5 1R
f2,451,0005 7T (20174 : 20,351,000/%
T EERAEERIEEE - BN R K&
F R 2 Rl TR 1 - 2 T 2 FRIB 5 18
143,669,000/ 7T (20174 : 125,302,000/%
TV ERRAEERIBEEE - AEE 2
RERTIAE 1B ] R HA A8 - B AT
F[E R = F N E| 5 2 $}T883,355,0007%% 7T
(20174F : 64,814,000 7T ) R 9 o

27. A

Number of shares Share capital

et ¥ H &N
HK$000
Tw#oo
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each #& M E{E0.0001% T2
LA
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 F2016F4 818 «
and 31 March 2018 20173 H318 &
201843 H31H 2,000,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETIHE:
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 R2016F4H1H
and 31 March 2018 2017%3H31 &
20184 3H31H 1,302,545,983 130
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

28. Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 15 August 2013.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments
and expansion of the Group.

Eligibility

Eligible participants include employees (whether full
time or part time employee, including non-executive
director) and such other eligible participants.

(i) Total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme as at 20 June 2018 (i.e. the
date of this report): 129,254,598 shares.

(i) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents

as at 20 June 2018: 9.94%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Share Option Scheme

() not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(ii) options granted to substantial shareholders or

independent non-executive directors or their

respective associates in any one year exceeding

the higher of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a

value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved

by the shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option
At any time from the date of grant of the option to such

a date determined by the board of directors but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors.
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FERCRERT 8] 2 T E i T

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Bt Jie St B 2 H #Y
BASEEER S| B LA T =
ZB2EEURRAEE 7 RKERE
G

& %

AERZRERERES (BER2BX
REMES - BISFITES) RFH
e BRSEE -

() MRIRFERERTBIR2018F6H20
A (AR EBH) A FEITZ
fein #21E 129,254 5980 ©

(i) H201846H208 H A E4TR%
M2 BDE 9.94% °

RS BETEAAERKZH

EANE LT ol

() BRIFEREAL A B RIFEEM12
& A HAR N NS AR B E 21 TR% (D
Z1% : &

(iy AEM—FZzARMAEZRES
BYIERTESTHHESBZ
HBRARD ZHERE SHBA
BTN 201% N BERS
5,000,000/ JT 7B £ J AL E

A7 o S e B ey = 0T PR
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29.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Share Option Scheme (continued)

(g) (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;
(ii) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company and will not be less than the
highest of (a) the closing price of the share on the date
of grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

Approximately 5 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme.

Legal Reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the
Macau Special Administrative Region, certain subsidiaries
of the Company are required to set aside 25% of their profit
for the year to a legal reserve until the legal reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. No appropriation
was made in both years as the legal reserve of those
subsidiaries have already reached 50% of their respective
registered capital.

Non-controlling Interests

Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2018
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests
of HK$112,009,000 (2017: HK$112,009,000) on certain
interest-free loans from the non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary which were contributed in proportion to their
shareholdings.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 255 4415k A P A #]
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W HEGT &) (42)
() () FPRAIEMERERFTZARY
KRB 1.008 7T

(i) WAZEEKA]BER RSB AN 2 A
PR & B A 28E A I

NSRRI RGN ERE
EHR - NEM -

(i)

i A AT 1 2 2k
TEENHARRESTSET  HET
BERTNII&EE : (G Bk
2 WHE: )R EER L BHA R
BEEARDZFHRHE: KK
[GIEEER

(h)

i T HE ST 81 2 8% P B ER
#9545 (FA2023F8 A 148 BIHR) -

(i)

B B BT S BRa B B BB E

& € ok s

RFVFRITTI R < RRA R AR PIRTE -
ARRZETHBRRAARFEEMNZ
BWMNEERE BEEEERBEER
AEMEARZ50% /A 1E - R MEFEA i
RZEMB AR OEERBEEEERE
A E AR 250% » B AF DK ©

I ¥ % BE £

M2018F3A31H  EE R E = B IERIE
2 FEE A AE 25 & X 3E112,009,0005% 7T
(20174 : 112,009,000/ 7T ) ° B B H & J5
B B A B FEHE A RS AR H A R E 19
iRtz BT R BB

A B A B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Capital Risk Management (continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary and bank borrowing as disclosed in notes 23
and 24 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the debt
raising.

Financial Instruments
(a) Categories of financial instruments

31.

32.

B A Ja B B ()

REB 2 EALEDIRERSFEE (BIEK
FFoskoan Rl EE 2 R —HE A E) 2 3E
ERERFIERIFITEE) - RekReE
BY 2 FRALARRE ABGERS (8
FEEBTRA - RBEF REMRERE)

ZAYNCTE a5l @ S R Y B2
A2 —E#D EERERBEAKNAREEE
Az AR - REEFES ~EE&E
BSRCR - EITER D S B E R E
EREEARE-

& il T H
(a) <k T HZHH

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
T TWHT
Financial assets TRMEE
Loans and receivables ER R ERRK
Trade and other receivables 25 K H At sk 298,536 274,106
Pledged bank deposit AR ITER 334 329
Short-term bank deposits RHERITER 475,516 2,822
Bank balances and cash RITESRKEIE S 3,098,510 3,959,005
3,872,896 4,236,262
AFS investments AtEERE
Listed debt securities FTEBKES 423,074 -
4,295,970 4,236,262
Financial liabilities ol =R
At amortised cost bi7g- F 1D
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMER K 289,364 125,044
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries X [E ZI & A 7 FUE 3,283 4,092
Amounts due to non-controlling r—FEMEB AT Z
interests of a subsidiary JEVERS HE T SR IE 107,600 120,800
Bank borrowing RITEE - 469,800
400,247 719,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

32. &Rt TR (&)
(b) B 5 Jal i 4 7% T M R

32. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in
above table. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (foreign
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in
foreign currency exchange rate will affect the Group’s
financial results and its cash flows. Several subsidiaries
of the Company have foreign currency sales and
purchase, but the management considers the amount
of foreign currency sales and purchase is insignificant.
The management considers the Group does not
expose to significant foreign currency risk in relation to
transactions denominated in MOP and USD. Exposures
on balances which are denominated in MOP and USD
in group entities with HK$ as functional currency are not
considered significant as MOP is pegged to HK$ which
is also effectively pegged to USD under the pegged
exchange system in Hong Kong.

The Group has certain pledged bank deposit, short-
term bank deposits and bank balances which are
denominated in RMB (being currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities)
amounting to HK$8,048,000 (2017: HK$4,898,000). In
addition, the AFS investments of the Group, which are
denominated in RMB, amounted to HK$62,181,000
(2017: Nil). The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

AEE7FTESMTAHIIN LR
ZEEMTAZHBERS BN T
AT BT TAZARE
SRR (SNSRI - F R 2R &
HipERER)  FERBRIREE
& BUER o BLARADRLES % R B 2 R
BRI -EEEBHZFRBRETE
BRER BRALERERERZTT
AETEE 2EiE-

17 53 I Bt

S R
SNERRRIERSEEARBEMERE
REREREZINEEREE) 2 [
B o RN RIE T HIB A BIAINEETT
BE HEREEBRRAINECETESR
ZEHEMTRB-ERERR AE
[ 30 #2% E f (EART ER DAORPI ST N R TT e
BZRZBEBENERINERR - B
RIFE B BIE X HRPT TS T
§- MBTTINE Ut B S T i -
It BT AT B EE T I
MPITC R RTTE(EZ 8k 2 BRI
X

AEBUARE (AEHEEEEE
MINREEEE AN B FHEM S
TREMETER BHRTER
N §R 17 #5 #4 58,048,000/ 7T (2017
4 14,898,000/ 7T ) ° thN - AEE A
ARBHEZIHEERESER
62,181,000/ 7T (20174 « ) - AR &
B AT NS SRR o AT 0 B
EEgERINEERRNG ZREE
R ERIMNE R -

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 255 4415k A P A #]

Annual Report 2017/2018 4Ei



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

32. &Rt TR (&)
(b) W5 Ja B 45 B OR B RBUIR (A7)

32. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5.0% (2017: 5.0%) in
exchange rate of RMB against HK$, while all other
variables are held constant. 5.0% (2017: 5.0%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to the key management personnel and
represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5.0% (2017: 5.0%) change in foreign
currency rate. For a 5.0% (2017: 5.0%) strengthening in
RMB against HK$, the Group’s profit for the year would
be increased by HK$3,511,000 (2017: HK$245,000). If
RMB had been weakened against HK$ in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposit, short-
term bank deposits, bank deposits included in bank
balances and AFS investments. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
its variable-rate bank balances and bank borrowing.
The Group currently does not have policy on cash flow
hedges of interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need
arise.

The Group’s sensitivity to fair value interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to interest rate
for those fixed-rate AFS investments at the end of the
reporting period. If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2017: Nil) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s investments revaluation
reserves would decrease/increase by HK$6,917,000
(2017: Nil) as a result of the changes in the fair value of
fixed-rate AFS investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

32. &Rt TR (&)
(b) W5 Ja B 45 B OR B RBUSR (A7)

32. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk
has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rate for those variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowing at the end of the reporting period and
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the interest rate assuming that it took place
at the beginning of each year and was held constant
throughout the respective year. If interest rate for the
variable-rate bank balances had been 10 basis points
(2017: 10 basis points) higher and interest rate for the

177 55 I B (4 )
FIEm b (&)
$E .iﬁﬁﬁ//miﬁjzmﬁ»ﬁZK@E
TOiRIE 2 MR 2 )F B F R R1T4S
&fETﬂM‘Za’LIJTH e N E TR B R A
SRR e # e 2 A BT - Wk
qxﬁﬁﬁfﬁbﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%éi THRE
FRENRFDE - WF BT RRITE
#R2 M E EFHOMEE B (20174 10
EEE) MEFBFERRITEE 2 FI=
FBOMEEE (20174 : SOEEE) -
HiFrB#2ARIBFIE  FEaH

variable-rate bank borrowing had been 50 basis points ZBESZEBINT
(2017: 50 basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, the potential effect on profit for the
year is as follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$"000
T T
Increase (decrease) in profit FEmME I ORL)
for the year
— Variable-rate bank balances —FENERITEEH 414 135
— Variable-rate bank borrowing —FHHERITEE - (2,349)
414 (2,214)
If interest rates had been lower in an opposite WA EEERSRBERAMAEEE

magnitude and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.

Other price risk

For AFS investments, the management monitors market
price exposure and will consider hedging significant
market price exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to other price risk on AFS
investments at the end of the reporting period. If
the market bid price on such listed debt securities
had been 5% higher or lower, the potential effect on
investments revaluation reserve would increase or
decrease by HK$21,154,000 arising from the AFS
investments.

R HEERKEKRFRAR
B A

H A (B 15 B SR
RAHHERENS EEESER
IS ER R &N R E B
EAMSERRER -

TXHREEDITTIRIE 2 REFAR Z 7]
HEEREEMERRRET - MiZ
EIMEBESFMBEABLASKT
B5% BRI EREELEZRE
BB BEFEBIE NS D
21,154,000/ 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

32. Financial Instruments (continued) 32. &Mt L H (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) WA R b i PR B RBUR (42)
(continued)
Credit risk 15 B B
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the 20183 A31H s FEHE R
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their PRIEEMS ASBEEARSZHF
obligations as at 31 March 2018 in relation to each REBITRERERMEY 2 &KRE
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying ERR AL MK ERTZ5 5%
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated EEE/CREBE - REEEERR
statement of financial position. In order to manage the EREECZk—EAEKERETEE
credit risk, the management has delegated a team R EEFE R EAMEREF I
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit TR ELEVE B TEN U B8 HA(E 75 o 1t
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure SNVREREIK AEBEREBERRE
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. HEPREEEEKERETLH
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount TR &R E 5K AT
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting B & &8 - AREIRBEA AT U Bl SRIBVE
period based on the management’s knowledge of EHBEEBRE REME A2
customers and their creditability and repayment record AEERATEE 2 EERRE KR
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made FEAE o

for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because MR EF RERE TR ETEE
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings BEEREENRZRIT B REE
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. BZEERBRBR-

The credit risk on AFS investments is limited because R EF REIRE BT ARMIBATIEE
the counterparties are corporations with high credit BEREENR2ME Bt #E
rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies. EREZEERBEBR-

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 54.7% REBEFEEFREERRE RER
(2017: 62.4%) and 83.8% (2017: 90.0%) of the total B 5 WK ABEEH54.7% (20174
trade receivables which were due from the Group's 62.4% ) }283.8% (20174 : 90.0% ) 7
largest customer and the five largest customers RIPR B SRR L XK 0 B 2 FRX
respectively within the business segment of gaming BEPRAIARERP RANAREERR
operation. The directors of the Company consider REMAARBEFPZESRUHRZEE
that there is no significant credit risk on the trade R AEX - TIA R F 2 B iR
receivables from the five largest customers given their BREMEECHRIT - EHESEK
strong financial background and good creditability. The RERBDBRETER -

remaining trade receivables balances are spread over a
number of customers.

Liquidity risk B & & B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group REERBECERE AEEER
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash RiEsRe MReSENERNEIERE
equivalents deemed adequate by the management RBTREZIKFE BN AER 2 &
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the EREECMBERERERE ¥
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management Z2-EBREERBITEEZFABR
monitors the utilisation of banking facilities and ensures RERFEEER® (WE) -

compliance with loan covenants, if any.

118 Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 3% 2454405 A PR A ]
Annual Report 2017/2018 4E#i




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32. &l TH (&)
(b) W5 Ja B 45 B OR B RBUSR (A7)

32. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, based on the existing levels
of bank balances and the existing banking facilities
available, the Group will be able to meet its future
cash flow requirements. Accordingly, the management
considers that the Group’s liquidity risk is minimal.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$100,000,000 (2017:
HK$100,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities that will
result in cash outflow. The table has been drawn up

B b ()

R2018F3A31H ' IRIFEIRIT &4 R
BKFERIREAERMNIRITEERE
B AEBEBEsmmEeEHRASR
SER-Eit BEERAEAEBEHN
MENESRBREM-

MR2018F3A31H A& B ~ 7]
HERBEAHHETEEEE
£100,000,000/% T (20174 :
100,000,00078 7T, ) °

TREIIBEHRAEERSRE 22
BABRIH MIERHBFB UX
TIRBAR R E R pEAERE 2 &F A

based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes principal
cash flows.

ZERMABZANRB S REMR
BB REEREREZAE -

Liquidity and interest risk tables JEE) & & R B fg 7%

Weighted  Less than Total
average 1 month or undiscounted
effective repayable on cash flows Total
interest rate demand 1-3 3 months to =5 Over KB carrying
IREF3y A A ok months 1 year years Syears  Blaii# amount
HRAR HEREE  1EMA MAEE 1£54 S E aE AR
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T#x T T#x T T#x T
2018 2018%F
Trade and other payables B85 REMENT - 289,364 - - - - 289,364 289,364
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries X [Fl & B2 A5 _ 3,283 _ _ _ _ 3,283 3,283
Amounts due to non-controlling ~ R—EHEBAFZ
interests of a subsidiary FIERE R TR - 107600 = = - - 107600 107600
400,247 - - - - 400,247 400,247
2017 2017%F
Trade and other payables BoREMERT - 125044 - - - - 125044 125,044
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries X [ 21 &2 FFIR - 4,092 - - - - 4,092 4,092
Amounts due to non-controlling ~ R—EHEBAFZ
interests of a subsidiary FEERERTE - 120,800 - - - - 120,800 120,800
Variable-rate bank borrowing R ERITEE 3.27 14,751 - 43368 465,164 - 523283 469,800
264,687 - 43,368 465,164 - 773,219 719,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

32. 5@ T H (Z)
() &R THARMEMGTE

32. Financial Instruments (continued)

(¢) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

Other than disclosed above, the fair values of other
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of all other financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost at the end of each
reporting period approximate their corresponding fair
values.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets measured at

BB RGBT LN E RS T
LEENEREENAREBENZE
PrfminBEABEE -

R EXFTEEI b EER
TRBEZ AEEIREERTHR
ReREDMN AR EERILERE -

RRBEER/ REEZHYKR &
BIHRAAR B A e R EE K
TRBEZRAEEEEEALEE
A

AEEETEMEENSRPRUR
REEME TREHERUNETE
ZETREEAABEZER (Fh
AEFTRAER R ABIR)

HAE VT Y A A 5T 8 2 A

fair value on a recurring basis K S AR
Relationship of
Valuation technique(s) and unobservable
Fair value key input(s) Significant inputs to fair value
Financial assets Fair value hierarch MR unobservable inputs A2 i A\ o
SEE ARME 'A\fME{g%ﬁ& EX 3 /N ¢ TR BE AW ARMEZ B
HK$'000
T
AFS investments 423,074 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active N/A N/A
AHREERE (2017: Nil) F1R market TER TEA
(2017% : &) mEMSEARE

There were no transfers between Level 1 and other AT F1REE MR R 2 R E
Levels during the year. ERo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

33. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from

Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group’'s consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing activities.

33. il I B R R A 2 LR Bk

MRAVNAKBRE RS AELNRESR
B BER S MOFR S EE) BB REIFTE
ENREDNREARSREIRKRERE
DN AEEGARSRERTHER
BERDMELNRERENARE-

Amounts
due to non-
controlling
interests of
a subsidiary

K=l
Bank Dividend Interest ik 5 24 il
borrowing }%a ables payable Z It Total
RITHE A I B JE A 1) B TE 25 3K0H At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T T
(note 24) (note 21) (note 23)
(M 7E24) (Hat21) (H#t23)
At 1 April 2017 R2017F4A1H 469,800 - 3,691 120,800 594,291
Dividends declared (note 12) BERRE (HiE12) - 108,111 - - 108,111
Interest accrued (note 8) AR (H1i#8) - - 12,209 - 12,209
Financing net cash outflow REBS RN TR (469,800)  (108,111) (15,900) (13,200  (607011)
At 31 March 2018 20184 3A31H _ _ _ 107,600 107,600
34. Capital Commitments 34. & A i
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#on
Contracted for but not provided in the — Ft¥1%  #ERBEDITH
consolidated financial statements, BARREE T BEREK P
net of amounts paid, in respect of BE(HRENEE)
property, plant and equipment (note) (H15) 3,177 93,290

Note: An amount of HK$85,993,000 contracted for but not provided in

the consolidated financial statements, net of amounts paid, in
respect of property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2017
had been cancelled upon termination of a renovation contract as
mutually agreed between the Group and the counterparty during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

35. Operating Lease Commitments
The Group as lessee

Operating lease rentals paid and
payable for the year in respect of
rented premises

Bt BRAEEERTA S LR E R ESE
TIEAR 8R2017F3A31HtE
RN REDITHBERNGAMERE
R 5 2 £ %885,993,0008 7T (1K 2
45) CNEE2018E3A31 B ILFE

35. KM E R

FEARABRDREN K
ERHzE&e2HERS

A WA 2 AR AL
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$’000
T Tt
2,406 2,522
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35. Operating Lease Commitments (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

<

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

The Group as lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises, which fall due as follows:

35.

REMERWE (&)

ABEHAE R RN ()

REFHR AEEHBEREHEMEZ
NAIHEREHERAN AR NREHE
TRZAYE AR IET

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#T T

Within one year 1F " 3,270 1,243
In the second to third year inclusive F2EFEIF

(BHEEEMEEN) 1,090 163

4,360 1,406

The leases were negotiated for terms ranging from 1
to 2 years (2017: 1 to 2 years) and the rentals are pre-
determined and fixed.

The Group as lessor

Operating lease rentals received and FEARETKZ
receivable for the year in respect of wEMEE W RER 2
completed investment properties KEHERS

EEEEEEERE AN 1225
(2017F 122 )N E -mie HFELE
ENRBETESE-

ACHE AR Ay AL
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
22,148 23,706

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants to receive the following future
minimum lease payments in respect of premises in the
completed investment properties in Macau, which fall due
as follows:

REHMPR - AEB R EEPETH - AR
FIE e 2 I E WM B IR WER T 51 2 £
EHESH HABEHMT:

2018 2017

HK$000 HK$000

T oo TFwoo

Within one year 1F A 20,764 21,249
In the second to fifth year inclusive F2EFE5F

(PEERMEEA) 17,587 41,090

38,351 62,339

Certain premises in the Group's completed investment
properties have committed tenants for the tenancy ranging
from 2 to 5.5 years (2017: 2 to 5.5 years) and the rentals are
pre-determined and fixed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

36. Related Party Transactions 36. B 552 5
(a) During the year, the Group had the following significant () MAFE RNEEZHEFEFETT
transactions with related parties: HNERRZS
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$’000
T#L T
Advertising fee to related companies RIBEERAA T NESE 213 -
Brokerage fee to a related company RI—REBEEQ AT NELE 634 -
Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung MEEL (UAEEES
in his capacity as a patron of BEXFPZEH)ZNAE
the Group’s VIP room 1,023 1,117
Professional service fee to M —fERE AR
a related company EXRBER 420 420
Purchase of property, plant and MEEN R R —HERR
equipment and merchandising MEBBARIEEME -
goods from related companies and He2s R R R E m
a fellow subsidiary 1,570 1,238
Reimbursement of administrative ENRRMBARXMTZ
expenses to fellow subsidiaries TR X 11,044 11,671
Rental income from a related company A — & B8 3& A &) Y B
2 WA 4,141 4,141
Secretarial fee to a related company A — I EEE R A+
WERBE 400 400
Note: The above related companies and fellow subsidiaries are Mt LMEERARRRERHE RS
either controlled by the AY Trust or a director of the Company. AY Trustsk — B AR R B E 16l
(b) The key management personnel of the Company (b) RABZEBREBABRARRIZE
are the directors of the Company. The details of FoREEXNEHEEHESRNZ
the remunerations paid to them relating to short- TN ISR S IS IR M0

term employee benefits are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

37. Financial Information of the Company 37. A5 v 2 W E R
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March A TA201853A31H k201763 H31H
2018 and 31 March 2017 is as follows: ZEERIAT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFH#oT Tt
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBRRZIRE 52,545 -
Amount due from a subsidiary JiE Uk — FET B JEB8 /1 /) 5 TR 179,781 -
232,326 -
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H b & WK 223 229
Amount due from a subsidiary JiE W — e BfY JBB A B3R 1B 346,545 417,403
Bank balances and cash RITESRKEIES 294,405 549,419
641,173 967,051
Current liabilities mBAE
Other payables H A R 827 881
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary R—RERZH B AR RE 930 990
1,757 1,871
Net current assets MENEEFE 639,416 965,180
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRSEE 871,742 965,180
Capital and reserves BARKFHE
Share capital IR A 130 130
Reserves (note) M (HaE) 871,612 965,050
Total equity AR 871,742 965,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

37. Financial Information of the Company 37. KA ZMBER (&)
(continued)
Note: B at
Capital
redemption
Share reserve Retained

premium A% I [ profits Total

JBe 53 ¥ 164 fiti 1 B i A Ak

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T#oc T T T
At 1 April 2016 M20165F4 518 436,765 668 233,092 670,525
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNREEKHEE
income for the year - - 394,821 394,821
2016 final dividend paid in cash 2016 F REARR B - LR & 1 - - (67,732) (67,732)
2017 interim dividend paid in cash 2017 R HIfE 8 LR & S+ - - (32,564) (32,564)
At 31 March 2017 201743 HA31H 436,765 668 527,617 965,050
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNREEK BT
income for the year - - 14,673 14,673

2017 final dividend paid in cash 2017F REARR B - LAIR & 1 - - (74,245) (74,245)
2018 interim dividend paid in cash ~ 2018F R EiMR 5 - LA & S 1+ - - (33,866) (33,866)
At 31 March 2018 }%2018@3% 31H 436,765 668 434’179 871 ,612
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries 38. Bt & 2wl 5F 1%

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) BB 2w — i & Bt
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company RARA2018F3 431H k201743 A
as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are as follows: BAZEEMBARFENT:

Nominal value of
Place of issued ordinary
incorporation and  share/registered
establishment/ capital
operation BT
Name of subsidiary ERIYE R Ve EERRAR/ The Group’s attributable equity interest Principal activities
W 24 ) 44 Ft-g L GALN NN TRE T A 2 J A FUEH
Directly Indirectly
Hi I 4%
2018 2017 2018 2017
%o % % %o
Acute Rise Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - - 60 60  Investment holding
HEBRAA Macau 1%=7n REZR
AERLHE /2
Affluent Travel Services Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 = - 60 60  Provision of travel agency services
ERKEARAR & 500,000 7 RERETN RS
Asian Glory Limited Macau MOP25,000 = - 60 60  Property holding
DNRBERAT EF 25,0002 BENE
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Macau MOP25,000 - - 60 60  Provision of project financing
Management Limited i 25,0002 ¢ services
AERETEERERAA REBERERE
Emperor Entertainment Hotel British Virgin Islands/ US$50 - - 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Limited Macau 50% T REZR
AERETEEREFRAA AERLEE/ 2
Grand Emperor Entertainment Macau MOP500,000 = - 60 60  Provision of hotel and catering
SERETERM il 500,000%F9 7T services
RABERE SRS
Inn Hotel Macau Limited Macau MOP100,000 = - 100 100 Provision of hotel and catering
RPR A il 100,0002F7¢ services
REEERERRHE
Keen Million Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 = - 60 60  Mass market and slot machine
Macau 1T operations
ABRLHE/ 2 PERATRIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued) 38. M & 2 w5k (42)
(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued) (@) MEAE—BER (&)
Nominal value of
Place of issued ordinary
incorporation and  share/registered
establishment/ capital
operation (&% ¢5)
Name of subsidiary b RO LEBBA/ The Group's attributable equity interest Principal activities
M o A ) 4 B il AT {8 AR M A 2 A FEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE I 4%
2018 2017 2018 2017
% % % %
Luck United British Virgin Islands/ US$10,000 = - 60 60 Investment holding
Macau 10,000% 7 REZR
ABRLHE/ 2
Oceanic Leader Investments British Virgin Islands/ US$1 = - 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Macau 1T REZR
AERLEE /&M
Precision Faith Limited Macau MOP100,000 = - 100 100 VIP room operation and provision
AEBRAT P 100,0002F 7 of gaming-related marketing and
promotion services
BEREEBRRERY AETSE
EREERK
Quick Gain Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 100 = - Investment holding
Macau 1= REER
EBRTHE /1AM
Right Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 = - 60 60  Investment holding
ERBRAT Macau 1T REZR
RERRHE/EM
Tin Hou Limited Macau MOP25,000 = - 100 100 Provision of agency services for
REEBRAT &P 25,0002 7 gaming operation
REBVELEE RN RS
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company KARREECER  ERINBESR
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, HAEBXESEEFTETE R
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. NAIME AR - AR RRIEERATHL
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the HiMB AR ZFI5g < RIBANIT
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in Ko

particulars of excessive length.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited % £ {4k A B A v 127
Annual Report 2017/2018 ¥




)

38.

128

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I RR M

<

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All
of these subsidiaries operate in Macau. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as
follows:

Principal place of

Principal activities business
EXE 315 F2 B b B
Investment holding and others Macau

WA IR N A P

38.

B 2wl wEN (A2 )

(a) WA 2 7 — MR R (4)
REHMFK AR AFEHALET
ETEAMEMHBL A - RSB
AF R HEAPIEE S EA A

B E BB T :

Number of subsidiaries

Wi i 2 v 9 H
2018 2017
5 5

None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any
debt securities as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March
2017.

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non-
controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership

20183 A31H N2017E3A31H »
RARIM B A R T (15 E
% o

B A ORI 52 TN 4R B S A R
J& 2 W Z i1
TREIIFEEEAIHERE SRR
RPFREMB AR ZFIE:

(b)

Place of interests and
incorporation/ voting rights held by
principal place of non-controlling interests
business v A 2 Profit allocated to non- Accumulated
Name of subsidiary %t Bz %/ A MEME 45 % controlling interests  non-controlling interests
Wt 22 W) 44 FRAE B HE L B 23 BT 4 it 1 g 2 i Rt A I 46
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
% %  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
T80 T TH#7 T
Luck United* British Virgin Islands/ 40 40 114,156 82,160 = 1,886,836 1,773,236
Macau
EREARE /RN

* Representing Luck United and its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

38. fiH @ A wl s (42)

(b) A ORIk 15 B 45 0 JE 2 B it
Ji&§ oAl Z vk ()

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (continued)

Luck United

Luck United

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$/000
T#T T
Current assets MEEE 3,494,789 3,401,949
Non-current assets FEMBEE 2,184,456 1,933,456
Current liabilities MEEE (816,513) (760,745)
Non-current liabilities EMBAE (145,641) (141,570)
Equity attributable to owners of KARIEB AEGER
the Company 2,830,255 2,659,854
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR A 2 1,886,836 1,773,236
Revenue WA 948,706 1,013,141
Expenses, other gains and losses FZ - B fes R E B (663,315) (807,741)
Profit for the year FE A 285,391 205,400
Profit for the year attributable to: FEMEF R = A
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZ RN 171,235 123,240
Non-controlling interests FEIZ I M = 114,156 82,160
285,391 205,400
Other comprehensive (expense) EEFEEMA2AE (FAX)
income for the year attributable to: g
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIEZ RN (834) 16,104
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR A (556) 10,736
(1,390) 26,840
Total comprehensive income EhEEE2E RSB
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIEZ PN 170,401 139,344
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR HE 2 113,600 92,896
284,001 232,240
Net cash from operating activities KERE RS 2R FH 175,220 286,421
Net cash (used in) from investing (HR)REZETEE.Z
activities Rt (661,930) 619,600
Net cash used in financing activies FAREEEE 2R & FE (33,000) (28,000)
Net cash (outflow) inflow BWe Omd) mAFEEE (519,710) 878,021
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> NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS <
mEMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #H £2018F3H31H ILFE

39. Event after the Reporting Period 39. 2 WI1R 3R
Subsequent to 31 March 2018, the Company had 20183 H31H 1& - A A A1 1201854 A
repurchased its own shares from the market in total of 18H 201854 H19R 201854 H20H £
1,935,000 shares at an aggregated consideration of M5 £ A42R (83,346,000 TTIE R £ A &
HK$3,346,000 with an average price of HK$1.729 per share B 19 & $£1,935,0000% - F39E B FA1.729
on 18 April 2018, 19 April 2018 and 20 April 2018. Those BT E RN HEN2018F5H8AE &
shares were cancelled on 8 May 2018 subsequently. FTiH e
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBYUE

RESULTS E

Year ended 31 March
WE3ASIH R4
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR SR T SR T

Revenue 'ON 1,498,351 1,613,180 1,721,042 2,034,787 2,265,476
Profit before taxation PREL A& Al 468,868 409,854 334,028 758,557 1,002,468
Taxation credit (charge) HEE# () 38,862 18,796 (10,354) (63,764) (94,165)
Profit for the year FEEF 507,730 428,650 323,674 694,793 908,303
Profit for the year attributable to: FEEER N

Owners of the Company N/NGIE 2N 393,574 346,490 256,224 504,277 600,006
Non-controlling interests s 114,156 82,160 67,450 190,516 308,297
507,730 428,650 323,674 694,793 908,303

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES W om KAl

At 31 March
W3H31H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T#7 T T

Total assets 6,869,560 6,827,331 6,518,420 6,373,945 6,156,350

ES=
[
M my

ot

Total liabilities afE (992,756)  (1,348,756)  (1,395,039)  (1,459,614)  (1,773,994)
5,876,804 5,478,575 5,123,381 4,914,331 4,382,356

Total equity attributable to: BT EEEER:
Owners of the Company N/NGIE N 3,989,968 3,705,339 3,443,041 3,301,441 2,959,982
Non-controlling interests RS 1,886,836 1,773,236 1,680,340 1,612,890 1,422,374

5,876,804 5,478,575 5,123,381 4,914,331 4,382,356
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> SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES <
Y E TS

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March  AEBE2018F3A31H 2 R EMEFIBUT
2018 are as follows:

COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CREMZREYE
The Group’s
interest
Location Purpose Floor area A4
i B A& A4 T B JRE A B 25
sq. ft. %o
I
1. Shops of Ground Floor of the Grand Commercial 5,520 60
Emperor Hotel, Macau EES
RPR 2 IREE 53 T 5 8
2. 8th Floor of the Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau Commercial 22,266 60
SR FT 3 2R [ 818 SES
3. 10th Floor of the Grand Emperor Hotel, Macau Commercial 22,266 60
P 2IREER 51018 SES
4. Portion of Ground Floor and the whole of Commercial 24,200 100
1st Floor of the Inn Hotel Macau, Macau EES

RPIEEEE M T E D R 1IERE
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